Financial details of Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

Annexure 6A

(Rs. in Crores)

Limited review
financials for
. Half year
Particulars ended 30t
September, F.Y. F.Y. F.Y.

2016* 2015-16 2014-15 | 2013-14
Equity Paid up Capital 96 96 96 96
Preference share capital 2017 2019 2017
Reserves and surplus 3791 2926 2473 1855
Carry forward losses - - - -
Net Worth 3887 5039 4588 - 3968
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans 1 2 2 3
Preference share capital - 1908 - - -
Fixed Assets 349 388 381 362
Investment Property 87
Income from Operations 2454 4207 3426 3076
Total Income 2479 4429 3653 3260
Total Expenditure 1673 3101 2441 2085
Profit before Tax 806 1328 1212 1175
Profit after Tax$ 498 859 832 772
Cash profit 529 924 1189 802
EPS 2.19 7.43 7.15 7.94
Book value 40.47 52.47 47.77 41.31
Note:

1) Cash profit is calculated as Profit After Tax (+) Depreciation (+/-) Deferred Taxes
2) *Figures are in compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) notified by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

3) # Does not include other comprehensive income for September 2016

For Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

-

M Lakshminarayanan
Chief Compliance officer and Company Secretary

Mumbai, December 21, 2016
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RELIANCE BIG BROADCASTING PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office: 502, Plot No 91/94, Prabhat Colony, Santa Cruz (East), Mumbai 400 055
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U65990MH2006PTC160747

The financial details of Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited for the previous 3
financial years as per the Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year

statement of Accounts:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Audited for | As per last | 1 year prior | 2 years prior
the half year | Audited to the last to the last
ended Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial
30, 2016 Year Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Preference Share Capital 31.20 31.20 1.50 1.20
Reserves and surplus (18.62) (16.69) 19.54 3.07
Carry forward losses (profit (137.42) {135.49) (128.96) (1165.73)
and loss account debit
balance)
Net Worth 12.59 14.52 21.05 4.28
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans ~ - - -
Unsecured Loans 48.45 48.45 49.08 49.08
Fixed Assets (net) 0.83 0.88 0.49 0.96
Income from Operations 28.03 61.17 32.98 12.18
Total Income 28.07 61.17 32.98 12.24
Total Expenditure 30.00 67.71 45,57 19.88
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (1.83) (6.54) (12.59) (7.64)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (1.93) (6.54) (12.59) (7.64)
Cash profit/ (Loss) (1.90) (6.47) (12.27) (7.29)
EPS (in Rs.) (1,931) {6,537) | (12,590.37) (7,642.50)
Book value per equity share (18,613.23) | (16,682.11) 19,554.55 3,076‘.50

(in Rs.)

Note 1: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation

For Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

—

\ sy,

Tarun Katial
Director
(DIN: 01665221)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 November, 2016

et 2,
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BIG MAGIC LIMITED

(CIN: U74900MH2011PLC216414)

Registered Office: - 401, 4th Floor, Infiniti Mall, Link Road, Oshiwara, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400 053
Tel No.: 91 22 3068 9444 Fax No.: 91 22 3988 8927 Website: www.bigmagictv.com

The financial details of BIG Magic Limited for the previous 3 financial years as per the
Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year statement of Accounts:

{Rs. in crore)

Particulars Audited for | As perlast | 1 year prior 2 years prior
the period Audited | to the last to the last
ended Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial Year
30, 2016 Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 201314

Equity Paid up Capital 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Reserves and surplus (626.76) (602.18) (286.48) (121.13)
Carry forward losses (profit (626.76) (602.18) (286.48) (121.13)
and loss account debit
balance)
Net Worth (626.71) (602.13) (286.43) (121.08)
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans 698.11 616.81 326.89 206.81
Fixed Assets (net) 5.14 5.60 2.96 297
Income from Operations 39.70 58.94 41.61 2473
Total Income 45.91 66.94 41.76 2473
Total Expenditure 70.48 382.64 20712 74.75
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (24.57) (315.70) (165.35) (50.02)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (24.57) (315.70) (165.35) (50.02)
Cash profit/ (L.oss) (24.11) (314.82) (164.74) (48.77)
EPS (in Rs.) (4914.91) | (63,139.67) (33,070.95) (10,004.00)
Book value per equity (125,341.44) | {(120,426.53) (57,286.86) (24,215.91)
share (in Rs.)

Note 1: Total Expenditure for the period ended September 30, 2016, FY 2016 and FY 2015

includes Exceptional ltems

Note 2: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation

For BIG MAGIC LIMITED
\CUV\M/

Tarun Katial
Director
{DIN: 01665221)

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 17, 2016
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Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
(CIN: U45400MH2007PTC243437)

Regd. Off. : 401, 4th Floor, Infiniti Mall, Link Road, Oshiwara, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400 053
Tel No.: 91 22 3068 9444 Fax No.: 91 22 3988 8927 Email ID: communications@reliancebroadcast.com

Antrrex - 6O

The financial details of Azalia Broadcast Private Limited for the previous 3 financial years
as per the Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year statement of Accounts:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Audited for | As per last 1 year prior | 2 years prior to
the half Audited to the last the last
year ended Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial Year
30, 2018 Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 201314
Equity Paid up Capital 64.14 64.14 64.14 51.76
Reserves and surplus (68.61) (66.84) (60.51) (47.07)
Carry forward losses (105.73) (103.96) (97.63) (83.58)
Net Worth (4.46) (2.69) (3.64) (4.69)
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - -
Unsecured Loans 10.64 9.55 4.88 1.47
Fixed Assets (net) 0.01 0.02 0.22 0.26
Income from Operations - 0.05 1.21 2.18
Total Income 0.00 0.06 1.35 2.33
Total Expenditure 1.77 6.39 15.40 32.02
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1.77) (6.33) (14.05) (29.68)
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (1.77) (6.33) (14.05) (29.68)
Cash profit/ (Loss) (1.77) (6.35) (14.09) (30.47)
EPS (in Rs.) (0.03) (0.99) (2.24) (7.33)
Book value per share
(in Rs.) (0.70) (0.42) 0.57 0.91

Note 1: Total Expenditure includes Exceptional ltems
Note 2: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation (+) Deferred Tax

For Azalia Broadcast Private Limited

Je

Asheesh Chatterjee
Director
(DIN: 05135647)




To

LLP

chartered accountants

Independent Auditors’ Review Report

The Board of Directors,
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited

Re: Limited Review Report for the quarter and half year ended 30 September 2016

We have reviewed the accompanying Statement of unaudited standalone financial results of
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) for the quarter and half year
ended 30 September 2016 ("the Statement’). This Statement is the responsibility of the
Company’s Management and has been approved by the Board of Directors. Our responsibility
is to issue a report on the Statement based on our review.

We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This Standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as
to whether the Statement is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to
inquiries of Company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus
provide less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as stated above, nothing has come to our aftention that
causes us to believe that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other recognised accounting practices
and principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be
disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circular number CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016
dated July 05, 2018, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any
material misstatement.

For MGB & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 101169W/W-100035
o P,

Hitefidra Bhandari
Partner P
Membership Number 107832~

",

S

4{;

Mumbai, 25 October 2016

Peninsula Business Park, Tower B, 19th Floor, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013, 7 +91 22 6124 6124

MUMBALI » DELHI « JAIPUR

mgbco@mygbco.com

MGB & Co. (a partnership firm) converted into MGB & Co.LLP (a Limited Liability Partnership with Regn No. AAC-2940) w.e.f 13th May,2014



ZEE ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES LIMITED /[ﬁ/

=) P
CIN No : 192132MH1982PLC028767

Regd. Off. 18th floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013

Standalone financial results for the quarter/half year ended 30th September 2016

(R in lacs)
Three months ended on Six months ended on
Particulars 30-Sep-16 30-Jun-16 30-Sep-15 30-Sep-16 30-Sep-15
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
1 Income from Operations
Net sales /Income from operations 127,508 117,854 102,159 245,362 199,182
Total Income from Operations 127,508 117,854 102,159 245,362 199,182
2 Expenses :
{a) Operating Cost 55,208 48,134 49,026 103,342 90,277
(b} Employee Benefits Expenses 7,815 6,541 7,291 ; 14,356 | 15,882
(c) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1,864 1,835 1,504 3,699 2,969 '
{d} Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 8,780 7,666 8,412 16,446 15,762
(e} Other Expenses 13,345 14,881 12,584 28,226 25,999
Total Expenses | 2{a) to 2 (e} ) 87,012 : 79,057 78,817 166,069 150,889
3 Profit from Operations before Other Income, Finance Cost{1-2] 40,496 : 38,797 23,342 79,293 48,293
4 (a) Other Income i 16,467 5,785 6,462 22,252 12,326
{b}) Fair value through profit and loss account {7,985) (11,696) {5,993} {19,681) (12,051)
5 Z(rz)f:t from Ordinary activities before Finance Cost [ 3 + 4(a) +. 48,978 32,886 23,811 81,864 48,568
6 Finance Cost 624 629 627 1,253 1,255
7 profit from Ordinary activities before Tax [5- 6] 48,354 32,257 23,184 80,611 47,313
8 Tax Expense :
a) Current Tax 16,136 15,226 9,697 31,362 20,327
b) Deferred Tax (556} (5} 512 (561) 243
Total tax expense [ 8(a) + 8(b} ] 15,580 15,221 10,209 30,801 20,570
9 Net Profit for the period [ 7 - 8) 32,774 17,036 12,975 49,810 26,743
10 Othe comprehensive income 624 282 314 906 320
11 Total comprehensive income [9+10] 33,398 17,318 13,289 50,716 27,063
12 Péid up Equity Share Capital of X 1/- each 9,604 9,604 9,604 9,604 9,604

13 Earnings per Share {not annualised) : :
Basic and Diluted (X} 3.41 1.77 135 5.19 2.78
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| Vot o ZEE ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN No : L92132MH1982PLC028767

Regd. Off. 18th Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013

www.zeetelevision.com

Standalone Balance Sheet

Particulars

“A) Assets
; Non current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment property
(d) Intangible assets
(e) Financial Assets
Investments
Other financial assets
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net)
(g) Other non-current assets
{h) Income- tax assets (Net)
Total non-current assets

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
Current investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other balances with banks
Loans
Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
: Total current assets
‘Total Assets

B) Equity and Liabilities
: Equity
(a) Share capital
(b) Other equity
Total equity

Non current liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings
{b) Long-term provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Short-term Provisions
: Total current liabilities
ETotal Equity and Liabilities

(X in lacs)
As at 30-Sep-2016
{Unaudited)

26,690
6,287
8,694
1,960 |

174,527
8,594 |
3,693
3,141

16,715

250,301

140,318

60,696 :

123,619

20,214
10,374

15,000 :
16,212
30,902

417,335

667,636 |

9,605

379,140
388,745

190,893

4,254
195,147 |

40,721 |

34,401

7,142
1,480
83,744
667,636
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Consolidated financial results for the quarter/half year ended 30th September 2016

Particulars 30-Sep-16
Unaudited

Income from Operations
(a) Advertising Revenue 95,916
(b) Subscription Revenue 58,334
(c) Other Sales and Services 15,294
Total Income from operations | 1{a) to 1 (¢} } 169,544
Expenses
(a) Operating Cost 76,881
(b} Employee Benefits Expenses 15,327
{c) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3,359
{d) Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 11,531
{f} Other Expenses 16,883
Total Expenses [ 2(a) to 2 (e) } 123,981
Profit from Operations before Other income, Finance Cost{1-21 45,563
(a) Other Income 4,323
(b} Fair value through profit and loss account {8,290)
Profit from Ordinary activities before Finance Cost [ 3 + 4 {a} + 41,595
4alb)1
Finance Cost 855
Profit from Ordinary activities before Tax and Exceptional item { 5 40,741
-61
Less: Exceptional ltem -
Profit from Ordinary activities before Tax {7 - 8] 40,741
Tax Expense :
a) Current Tax 17,347
b) Deferred Tax (1,003)
Total tax expense [ 8{a) + 8(b) } 16,344
Net Profit for the period [9-10} 24,397
Add:Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associate/ Joint venture (557)
Less: Minority Interest 2
Net Profit for the period after Taxes and Minority interest 23,838
[11+12-13]
Othe comprehensive income (1,852)!
Total comprehensive income [ 14 +15] 21,986
Paid up Equity Share Capital of X 1/- each 9,604
Earnings per Share (not annualised) :
Basic and Diluted (X}

ZEE ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES LIMITED

CIN No : L92132MH1982PLC0O28767
Regd. Off. 18th Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013
www.zeetelevision.com

Three months ended on

2.48 ¢

30-Jun-16
Unaudited

91,198
52,816
13,148

157,162

65,753
14,993
2,511
11,971
19,130
114,358

42,804
7,341

(11,323)
38,822
750
38,072

38,072

16,585
(327)
16,258
21,814
{110)
8

21,696
333

22,029

9,604

2.26 ¢

30-Sep-15
Unaudited

82,898
47,914
7,047

137,859 .

60,319 |
11,968 |
1,965
11,703
18,010 ¢
103,965 |

33,894 |

5,949

{5,429)
34,414

823
33,591

3,306
30,285

11,358
(88)

11,270 ¢
19,015
(191);
61

18,763 |

5,330 |
24,093 |

9,604

1.95

fssel

{%in lacs)

Six months ended on

30-Sep-16
Unaudited

187,114
111,150

28,442

326,706

142,634
30,320
5,870
23,502
36,013
238,339

88,367

11,664

(19,613)

80,418

1,605

78,813

78,813

33,932

(1,330).

32,602

46,211
(667)
10

45,534

{1,519)
44,015

9,604

4.74

30-Sep-15
Unaudited

159,431
94,167
16,929

270,527

120,729 |
25,108
3,635
21,368
36,006
206,846

63,681
12,814
(11,457)
65,038

1,593
63,445

3,306
60,139

23,666
(502)
23,164
36,975
(341)
53

36,581

6,886
43,467 |
9,604

3.81




ZEE ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES LIMITED s s g I

CIN No : L92132MH1982PLCO28767 ure
Regd. Off. 18th Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013
www.zeetelevision.com

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(X inlacs)
As at 30-Sep-2016

Particulars
(Unaudited)
A} Assets
Non current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 37,650 |
(b} Capital work-in-progress ; 15,115
(c) Investment property 9,680
(d) Goodwill | 85,850
(e) Intangible assets i 7,186 |
(f) Financial Assets ;
Investments : 18,241
Other financial assets : 12,702
(g) Deferred tax assets (Net) | 7,450
(h) Other non-current assets 9,348
(i) Income-tax assets (Net) ' 39,088
Total non-current assets 242,310
Current Assets ;
(a) Inventories 144,813 |
(b) Financial assets
Current investments i 103,625
Trade receivables 170,352 |
Cash and cash equivalents ; 40,912
Other balances with banks : 10,374
Loans ! 15,000
Other financial assets : 15,344
(c) Other current assets 88,722
Total current assets E 589,142
i Total Assets ; 831,452
B} Equity and Liabilities
‘ Equity
(a) Share capital 9,605
(b) Other equity 489,093
Total equity ; 498,698
Minority interest , 258
Non current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings ‘ 190,883
(b) Long-term provisions | 7,250
(c) Other financial liabilities 3,789
Tofal non-current liabilities ; 201,922
Current liabilities
(a} Financial liabilities ’ i
Trade payables 53,126
Other financial liabilities 37,795
{b) Other current liabilities : 24,331
(c) Short-term Provisions ; 676
{d) Income-Tax liabilities (Net) ; 14,646
Total current liabilities 130,574
Total Equity and Liabilities 831,452 | M




|| Vst Koo | ZEE ENTERTAINMENT ENTERPRISES LIMITED
CIN No : 1.92132MH1982PLC0O28767
Regd. Off. 18th Floor, A Wing, Marathon Futurex, N.M.Joshi Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai ~ 400013
www.zeetelevision.com

1. Results for the quarter/half year ended 30 September 2016 are in compliance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Consequently, results for the quarter ended
30 September 2015 have been restated to comply with Ind AS to make them comparable. The Ind AS
compliant financial results pertaining to period ended 30 September 2015 have not been subjected to
Limited review or audit. However, the management has exercised due diligence to ensure that the financial
results presents a true and fair view of its affairs.

2. The above unaudited financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee in their meeting held
on 25 October 2016 and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25 October 2016.

3. The Statutory Auditors have carried out a Limited Review of the Standalone financial results of the quarter
/ half year ended 30 September 2016

4. The results do not include IND AS compliant results for the previous year ended 31 March 2016 as it is not
mandatory as per SEBI’s circular dated 5 July 2016,

5. The Company had approved sale and transfer of its ‘Sports Broadcasting Business’ held under / through
two (2) wholly owned non-material subsidiaries viz. Taj TV Ltd, Mauritius and Taj Television {India) Pvt Ltd
to Sony Pictures Networks India Private Ltd and its affiliates at an aggregate all-cash consideration of USD
385 Million post fulfilment of certain conditions precedent.

6. The Company has adopted Ind AS with effect from 1 April 2016 with comparative being restated,
Accordingly, the impact of transition has been provided in the opening reserves as at 1 April 2015.

Reconciliation of results between previous Indian GAAP and Ind AS are as under: (Rs in Lacs)
Standalone Consolidated
3 months| 6months |3 months| 6 months
Description ended 30| ended30 |ended 30| ended30
September | September | September | September
2015 2015 2015 2015
Net profit as per previous GAAP (Indian 19,504 39,863 24,740 49,116
GAAP)
i) Loss on fair valuation of preference (6,058) (12,115) (6,058) (12,115)
shares (note e)
i) Taxes on preference dividend (618) (1,235) (618) {1,235)
considered to be finance cost (note
€)
iii) Re—me.asur.eme.nts of defined 33 166 68 155
benefit obligations (Net of
tax) (note c)
iv) Profit on fair valuation of financial 64 64 631 660

instruments / investments (note b)
Net profit as per Ind AS




Notes:

d.

Place: Mumbai
Date : 25 October 2016

The reconciliation statement has been provided in accordance with circular CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 issued
by SEBI dated 5 July 2016 on account of implementation of Ind AS by listed companies

Certain financial instruments / investments have been recorded at fair value as at 1 April 2015 with the
resultant gain / loss in the opening reserves. For subsequent measurement, these instruments /
investments have been valued at amortized cost using effective interest rate / fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL) / fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as per accounting policy
determined by the Company.

Defined benefit obligations — Under Ind AS actuarial gains or losses on defined benefit obligations are
recognized in other comprehensive income, whereas under previous GAAP same was being charged to
statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of certain subsidiaries / joint ventures consolidated on line by line basis /
proportionate basis under previous GAAP have now been consolidated using equity accounting in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

6% cumulative redeemable preference shares have been classified as debt and have been recorded at fair
value as at 1 April 2015 with the resultant gain has been recognised in the opening reserves.

For subsequent measurement, preference shares have been valued based on fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL). Dividend distribution tax thereon has been charged to the finance cost.

The Company mainly operates only in one segment namely 'Content and Broadcasting' and hence segment
details are not required to be published.

Previous period figures have been regrouped wherever necessary

For & on behalf of the Board
Zee Ente(\tainment Enterprises Limited
A

%
H

Punit Goenka
Managing Director & CEO



RELIANCE BIG BROADCASTING PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: 502, Plot No 91/94, Prabhat Colony, Santa Cruz (East), Mumbai 400 055
Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U65990MH2006PTC160747

The financial details of Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited for the previous 3
financial years as per the Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year

statement of Accounts:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Audited for | As perlast | 1 year prior | 2 years prior
the half year Audited to the last to the last
ended Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial
30, 2016 Year Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Equity Paid up Capital 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Preference Share Capital 31.20 31.20 1.50 1.20
Reserves and surplus (18.62) (16.69) 19.54 3.07
Carry forward losses (profit (137.42) (135.49) (128.96) (115.73)
and loss account debit
balance)
Net Worth 12.59 14.52 21.05 4.28
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans 48.45 48.45 49.08 49.08
Fixed Assets (net) 0.83 0.86 0.49 0.96
Income from Operations 28.03 61.17 32.98 12.18
Total Income 28.07 61.17 32.98 12.24
Total Expenditure 30.00 67.71 45.57 19.88
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (1.93) (6.54) (12.59) (7.64)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (1.93) (6.54) (12.59) (7.64)
Cash profit/ (Loss) (1.90) (6.47) (12.27) (7.29)
EPS (in Rs.) (1,931) (6,537) | (12,590.37) (7,642.50)
Book value per equity share (18,613.23) | (16,682.11) 19,554.55 3,076.50

(in Rs.)

Note 1: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation

For Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

\ brsn

Tarun Pgatial
Director
(DIN: 01665221)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 November, 2016




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

(CIN: U74900MH2011PLC216414)

Registered Office: - 401, 4th Floor, Infiniti Mall, Link Road, Oshiwara, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400 053
Tel No.: 91 22 3068 9444 Fax No.: 91 22 3988 8927 Website: www.bigmagictv.com

The financial details of BIG Magic Limited for the previous 3 financial years as per the
Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year statement of Accounts:

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Audited for | As perlast | 1 year prior 2 years prior
the period Audited to the last to the last
ended Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial Year
30, 2016 Year
2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Equity Paid up Capital 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
Reserves and surplus (626.76) (602.18) (286.48) (121.13)
Carry forward losses (profit (626.76) (602.18) (286.48) (121.13)
and loss account debit
balance)
Net Worth (626.71) (602.13) (286.43) (121.08)
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans - - - -
Unsecured Loans 698.11 616.81 326.89 206.81
Fixed Assets (net) 5.14 5.60 2.96 277
Income from Operations 39.70 58.94 41.61 2473
Total Income 45.91 66.94 41.76 24,73
Total Expenditure 70.48 382.64 207.12 74.75
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (24.57) (315.70) (165.35) (50.02)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (24.57) (315.70) (165.35) (50.02)
Cash profit/ (Loss) (24.11) (314.82) (164.74) (48.77)
EPS (in Rs.) (4914.91) | (863,139.67) (33,070.95) (10,004.00)
Book value per equity (125,341.44) | (120,426.53) (57,286.86) (24,215.91)

share (in Rs.)

Note 1: Total Expenditure for the period ended September 30, 2016, FY 2016 and FY 2015

includes Exceptional ltems

Note 2: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation

For BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Tl

Tarun Katial -
Director
(DIN: 01665221)

Place: Mumbai
Date: December 17, 2016
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Azalia Broadcast Private Limited

(Previously known as BIG RTL Broadcast Private Limited)
(CIN: U45400MH2007PTC243437)
Regd. Off. : 401, 4th Floor, Infiniti Mall, Link Road, Oshiwara, Andheri (W), Mumbai 400 053
Tel No.: 91 22 3068 9444 Fax No.: 91 22 3988 8927 Email ID:
communications@reliancebroadcast.com

The financial details of Azalia Broadcast Private Limited for the previous 3 financial
years as per the Audited statement of Accounts along with latest year statement of

Accounts:
(Rs. in crore)
Particulars Audited for | As perlast | 1 year prior 2 years prior
the half Audited to the last to the last
year ended | Financial Audited Audited
September Year Financial Financial Year
30, 2016 Year
2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Equity Paid up Capital 64.14 64.14 64.14 51.76
Reserves and surplus (68.61) (66.84) (60.51) (47.07)
Carry forward losses (profit (105.73) (103.96) (97.63) (83.58)
and loss account — debit
balance)
Net Worth (4.46) (2.69) 3.64 4.69
Miscellaneous Expenditure - - - -
Secured Loans = - -
Unsecured Loans 10.64 9.55 4.88 1.47
Fixed Assets (net) 0.01 0.02 0.22 0.26
Income from Operations - 0.06 1.21 2.18
Total Income 0.00* 0.06 1.35 2.33
Total Expenditure 1.77 6.39 15.40 32.02
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (1.77) (6.33) (14.05) (29.69)
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (1.77) (6.33) (14.05) (29.69)
Cash profit/ (Loss) (1.77) (6.31) (14.02) (28.91)
EPS (in Rs.) (0.03) (0.99) (2.24) (7.33)
Book value per equity share
(inRs.) (0.70) (0.42) 0.57 0.91

Note 1: Cash profit is Profit after Tax (+) Depreciation

For Azalia Broadcast Private Limited

e

Asheesh Chatterjee
Director
(DIN: 05135647)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23 November, 2016




M. S. Sethi & Associates 191-R, Cavel Cross Lane No, 9

Chartered Accountants _ 2nd Floor, Dr. Viegas Street

: Kalbadevi, Mumbai - 400 002
Manoj Sethi Tel. 93245 17501
B.Com., EC.A.

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

Report on the interim Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying interim financial statements of Rellance Blg Broadcasting Private Limited (‘the
Gompany') which comprise the Batance Sheet as at September 30, 2018 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory Information.

Management's Responsibillty for the interim Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the preparation of these interlm financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position and financlal performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate infernal fipancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the interim financial
statements that give a true and falr view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, These
interim financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's Management.

Auditor’s Rasponsibility
Our responsibliity s to express an opinion on these interim financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the interim financlal statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the interim financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatemnent of the interim financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
conslders internal control relevant to the Company's praparation and fair presentation of the Interim financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the interlm financial statements.

\We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the interim financial statements.

Opinion :

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid interim financial
statements give the information in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at September 30, 2016 and its Loss for the
period ended on that date.

Report
We report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and bellef
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;
b) In our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of

those books;
¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement-with the books

of account
For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants ‘g
Regn.No.109407W Certified True Copy
O :
Mafio Sothl AT & ASeg For Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
: G Crgq ==
Proprietor e ‘.\‘\-\ 7*4-_9

Membership No, 39784

Place: Mumbai A

: Nov 3, AN 5

Date: November 23, 2016 q"‘er;a’}’;“ung? ‘f,ﬁ*
T
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v Director/Aufhorised Signatory




Reliance Big Broadeasting Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at September 30, 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

As at As at
Note September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capilal 2 312,100,000 312,100,000
Reserves and surplus 3 (186,232,343) (166,921,086)
125,867 657 145,178,934
Non-current liabilities
Other Long-term Liabilities 4 20,000 -
Long-term provisions 5 5211 715
Current Liahilities
Short-term borrowings 3] 484,528,661 434 528,661
Trade payables
Dues to Micro and Small enterprises 21 - -
Others 201,821,068 271,016,432
Other current liabilities 7 193,484,212 93,568,578
Shortterm Provisions 8 4,437 637
Total 1,0056,731,246 494,293,957
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets * 9
Tangible assets 8,323,654 8,613,949
Intangible assets = £
Non-current investments 10 - 100,000
Long-term Ioans and advances 11 11,190,506 13,292,687
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 908,767 703478
Short-term loans and advances 13 985,307,318 971,583,843
Total 1,006,731,246 994,293,957
Signilicant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are-an integral part of the 1-29
Financial Statements
As per our Report of even date
For M. S. Sethi & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants %'
Firm Registration Number: 109407W e
D("- lﬁ.»'ww AV~
‘- =

/ -
Manoj Sethi Tarun Katial Venkatarao Ponnada
Froprietar Director Direclor

Mermbership Number: 39784

Place: Mumbai
Date ' November 23, 2016

DIN:01503467

DIN:01666221

Place: Mumbai
Ate - November 23, 2016

True Copy

.r}ffgr Reliaﬁc@'ﬁfg Broadcasting Private Limited
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Director/Authorised Signatory
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Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended September 30, 20186
Currency in Indian Rupees

Period ended Period ended
Note September 30, September 30, 2015
20186
Revenue
Revenue from operafions 14 280,292 457 296,922,436
Other Income 15 412,360 -
Total Revenue 280,704,817 296,922,436
Expenses
Direct operating expenses 16 290,315,343 311,686,110
Employee benefits expense 17 374,856 285,209
Depreciation and amortization 9 290,295 404,079
Other expenses 18 9,035,600 9,174,037
Total Expenses 300,016,094 321,659,435
Profit / (Loss) before tax {(19,311,277) (24,636,999)
Tax expense - -
Profit / (Loss) for the period {19,311,277) (24,636,999)
Earnings per equity share of face value Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 25
Basic and Diluted (1,931) (2,464)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

As per cur Report of evén date

For M. S. Sethi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109407W

[

Lo

Manej Sethi Tarun Katial
Proprietor Director
Membership Number: 39784 DIN:01665221

Place: Mumbai
Date : November 23, 2018

Place: Mumbai
Date : November 23, 2016
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For Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

—

T

Director/&uthorised Signatory

For and on behalf of the Board

Cil

Venkatarao Ponnada
Director
DIN:01503467

bl o\
21 Mumbai ;;‘5

| Certified True Co;y_ N\




Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Cash Flow Statament for the period ended September 30, 2016

Currency in Indian Ruj

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activitles :
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortizatlon expense
Interest on Income tax refund
Operating Profit/ (Loss) hefore Working Capltal Changes
AdJustrents for changes in Working Capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade payables
Cash generated from Operalions

Taxes Pald (Refund)

Net Gash Generated from / (Used In) Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Sale of Investments
Net Cash Ganerated from / (Used in) Investing Activitiea
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Repaymenl of Borrowings
Net Cash Génerated from / (Used In} FInancing Activities
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Gash and Cash Equivalerits (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the commiencement of the-pefiod
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of period
Cash on hand
Bénk Balance

Net Increase / (Decrease) as disclosed above

Period ended Parlod ended
September 30, 2016 September 30, 2015
(19.311,277) (24,638,999)
290,295 404,079
(409,929) -
(19,430,911) (24,232,920)
(13,723 476) {244,207,250)
30,748,566 274,219,644
(2,405,821) 5,779,474
(2.512,110)
108,289 65,779,474
100,000 -
100,000 =
- (6,306,150)
- (6,306,150}
206,289 (526,676)
703,478 719,055
1 3,961
909,767 188,418
206,289 {628,877}

As per our Report of even date

For M. S. Sethi & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 109407W

L

>
Mano]"gnthi

Proprielor

Membership Number: 39784

Place: Mumbal
Date ;: November 23, 2016

For and on behalf of the Board

[ e\

Tarun Katial Venkatarao Ponnada
Director Diraclor
DIN:D1666221 DIN01503467

Place: Mumbal

Dale : Novamber 23, 2016




Reliance Big Broadeasting Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2016

1.

Significant Accounting Policies

a)

b)

©)

d)

€)

9

Basis of preparation of financial staterents

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with the Accouriting Standards prescribed under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies. Act, 2013 (the Act) to the extent applicable.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial slatements requires eslimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assels and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and lhe reported amounit of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual resulls and estimates are recognized in the
periad in which the resulls are known/ materialized.

Fixed Assels:
Fixed Assets are stated at cost inclusive of all taxes as applicable, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any.

Movie Rights are stated at lower of net cost (Cost minus accumulated amortization / impairment) or net
realizable value.

The cost of improvements to Leased properties taken on operating lease have been capitalized and disclosed
appropriately.

Depreciation/Amartisation:
Depreciation on fixed assets except movie rights, leasehold improvements and license fees is provided on the
straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Acl, 2013.

Expenditure incurred on Improvements of assels acquired on operating lease is written off evenly over the
balarice period of lease.

License fees are amortized equally over the balance period of licenses.
Uplinking : 10 Years
DownlinkKing : 5 Years

Impairment

In accordance with AS 28 — ‘Impairment of Assets’, where there is an indication of impairmerit of the Company's
assets, the carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any impairment, The recoverable amount of the assel (or where applicable, that of the cash
generaling unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use.
An impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Value in use is preserit value of estimated fulure cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the
asset and from ils disposal at the end of its useful life.

Invenlories
TV Serials, Film Broadcasting Rights are stated al lower of net cost (cost minus accumutated amortization) or
realizable value.

Ameortisation Policy of TV Serials, Film Broadcasting Rights:
{i) In case the Rights life is more than 5 years - 90% of the value of such rights over 5 years on straight line
method, and balance 10% , to be maintained as unamoriised right of the inventory till the life of the right.

(it) In case the Rights life is equal or less than 5 years - 100% of the vaiue of such rights over 5 years, or life of
the asset whichever is less on straight line method.

Or
at such higher rate of amortization based on the management revenue forecast.

Invesiments
Long term investments are stated at cost. For long term investments, provision/ write down is made for
permanent diminution in value. Current investments are valued al lower of cost and fair value.

'/




Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2016

h)
0]

(i)

k)

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period

in which the related service is rendered.

Post employment and other long term employee benefils are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss for the Period in which the employee has rendered services, The expense is recognized at the
present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gains and
losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefils are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Revenue Recognilion

Revenue from services provided are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the
consideration Is fixed or determinable and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. Such revenues are
recognized as the services are provided.

Advertising Service Fees accounted on rendering of services.

Sales are recognized when the risk and rewards of ownership are passed onto the customers, which is
generally on dispatch of goods.

Channel distribution and advettising rights are recognized as per the terms of the agreement.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions seitled during the Period are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period .

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at
the closing exchange rates on lhal date; the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Lass. In respect of integral foreign operations of the Company, fixed assets are lranslated at the rates
on the date of acquisition, monetary assets and monetary

Liabilities are translated at the rate on the date of the balance sheet and income and expenditure are trans|ated
at the average of weekly average rates during the Period,

Taxation
Provision for current tax is made after taking inta consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax resulting from "timing differences" between book and taxable profit is accounted for using the tax
rates and laws enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. The Deferred tax asset is
recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty of its realization in future,
However, in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward loss, the deferred tax assel is recognized
and carried forward only ta the extent that there is virtual certainty of its realization.

Provisions, Contingenl Liabjlities and Contingent Assets

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing of amount. Provisions are recognized when the Company
recognizes It has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably eslimated.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation arising out
of the past evenls, but is not probable than an outflow of resources embodying eccnomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. When there Is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which
the likelihood of oulflow of resources embodying econamic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigalion, assessment, fines, penalties etc, are recorded when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the accounts.

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are aitributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is ane that necessarily takes a substantial
period of lime to get ready for its intended use, All other borrowing coslts are charged lo revenue. ===
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Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the perlod ended September 30, 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

As at As al
2 Share capltal September 30,2018 March 31, 2016
Authorlsed
500,000 (previous year: 500,000) etuity shares of Rs 10 each 5,000,000 5,000,000
400,000,000 (previous year. 400,000,000) preference Shares of Re.1 each 400,000,000 400,000,000

405,000,000 405,000,000

|ssued, Subscribed and Pald up
10,000 (previous year: 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up 100,000 400,000

312,000,000 (previous year: 312,000,000) 8% Gumulative Redeemable Prefsrence
Shares of Re:1 each fully paid up . 312,000,000 312,000,000

312,100,000 312,100,000

{a) Reconclliation of number of equity shares at the beglinning and at the end of the year
Balance as at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000

Shares issued - -

Shares bought back =

Balance as at the end of the year 10,000 10,000

{b) Reconcillation of number of preference shares

Balance as at the beginning of the year 312,000,000 15,000,000
Shares issued Nil (Previous year 300,000,000 shares of Face Value Rs.1 each) - 300,000,000
Shares radeemed Nil ( Previous year 3,000,000 shares of Face Value Rs.1 each) - 3,000,000
Balance as at the end of the year 312,000,000 312,000,000

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares :
The Company has one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vole per share held. The
dividend,if any proposed by the Board of Directars is subject lo the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Maeting. In the event

of liquidation, the equity sharehalders are eligble to receive the remaining assels of the Company after distribution of ali preferential amaunts, in
proportion to their shareholding.

Preference Shares :
The Company has ane class of 8% curmulative redeemable preference shares having a par value of Re.1 per share,

{d) Shares held by Holding company and Intermediate holding company

Equity Shares:

9,890 (previous year: 9,890) equity shares held by

Rellance Big Enterlainment Private Limited 99,900 99,800

10 (previous year: 10) equity shares held by

Reliance Interaciive Advisars Private Limited (Formally known as

AAA Entertainment Private Limited.) 100 100
100,008 100,000

Preference Shares ;

12,000,000 (previous year: 12,000,000} 6% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

held by Rellance Big Entertainment Private Limited 12,000,000 12,000,000
12,000,000 12,000,000

{e) Details of shares held by shareholders halding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company

As.at September 30, 2016 As at Mar 31, 2016
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Equity Shares:
Rellance Big Entertainmant Private Limiited 9,990 99.9% 9,990 99.9%
Preference Shares :
Reliance Big Entertainmant Private Limiited 12,000,000 4% 42,000,000 4%
Big Magic Limited 300,000,000 96% 300,000,000 96%
L
i ? <.
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Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

As at As atl
3 Reserves and surplus September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016
Securities premlum account
Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,188,000,000 1,485,000,000
Add / (Less); Premium an issue / (redeemtion) of shares - (297,000,000)
Balance as at the end of the year/ Period (A) 1,188,000,000 1,188,000,000
Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year (1,354,921,086) (1,289,554,479)
Add:- Profit / (Loss) for the period/year (19,311,277) (65,366,586)
Balance as at the end of the year / Period  (B) (1,374,232,343) (1,354,921,068)
Total Reserves and Surplus (A+B) (186,232,343) (166,921,066)
4 Other Long-term Unsecured Liabilities
Security Deposit 20,000 -
20,000 .
5 Long-term Provisions
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note - 22) 5,211 715
5,211 715
6 Short Term Barrowings
Unsecured :
Loan from Related party * (Refer Note - 24 } 484 528,661 484,528,661
* Interest free loan repayable on demand 484,528,661 484,528,661
7 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 184,499,575 82,699,425
Statulory dues payable 8,984 637 10,869,153
193,484,212 93,568,578
8 Short-term Provisions
Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note -22) 4,437 637
4.437 637
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Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

10

11

12

13

Non-current investments

Investment in equily instruments (Unquoted, At cost, Non Trade)

In Subsidiary Company

Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited

Nil ( Previous Year:10;,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up

Long-term Loans and Advances

(Unsecured, considered good)

Tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax)
Other Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
-~ Current accounts
Cash on Hand

Short-term Loans and Advances

(Unsecured, considered good)

Inter-corporate deposits

Balance with government authorities

Loans and advances to related parties( Refer note 24)
Sacurity deposits

Prepaid expenses

Advance to véndors

al™ .,
Ny
o’ }g%l -~ T ?‘
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As at As at

September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016
- 100,000
- 100,000
9,785,267 11,887 448
1,405,239 1,405,238
11,190,506 13,292,687
909,676 699,517
91 3,861
909,767 703,478
749,350,000 749,350,000
63,192,800 53,577,795
13,237,383 14,410,666
9,000 9,000
46,957,324 B7,081,733
112,560,812 67,154,649
986,307,319 971,583,843
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Rellance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

Notes to the financial statemsnts for the perlod ended September 30, 2016

Currency in Indlan Rupees

14

15

16

17

18

Revenue from operations

Channel distribution and advertising rights

Other Income

Interest Income

Cost of Operations

Bandwidth and infrastructure cost
Placement fees
Marketing cost

Employes benefits expenss

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity & Leave encashmenl

Other expenses

Rates and taxes
Professional fees
Membership and subscription
Payment to auditors:

- Statutory audit fees

~ Tax audil feés
Interest - Others
Insurance Charges
Office expenses
Rapalrs and mainienance

Period Ended Perlod Ended
September 30, 2016 September 30,2015
280,282 457 296,922,436
280,292,457 296,922,436
412,360 -
412,360 -
56,771,066 54,950,018
232,026,677 256,736,082
1,517,600 -
290,315,343 311,686,110
364,686 284,370
11,874 10,839
8,296 -
374,856 295,209
1,178,875 1,462,080
6,004,587 6,930,778
1,076,247 539,998
50,000 50,000
12,500 12,500
264,149 172,004
87,333 -
67,502 B,675
294,407 -
9,035,600 9,174,035




Rellance Blg Broadcasting Private Limitad
Notss to the financlal statements for the period endad September 30, 2016

Currency in Indian Rug

19

20

21

22

Perlod ended Year andad
Septamber 30, 2018 March 34,2018

Contingent Llabilities
Dividend / Yield on Cumulalive Redeemable Preference Shares 841,843,836 733,643,836
In the opinion of the management, the Current assets, Loans and Advances and Currenl Liablities are approximately of the value slaled, if

reelizad/pald ini the ordinary course of business, The provision for all known lablilies is adaquale and:s not in excess, of amounts considered
reasonably nacessary.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Thare are no Micro, Small and Merdium Scale Business Enterprises, to whor \he Company owes dues, which are otitstanding for mare than 45 days
as al Seplembar 30, 2018, This information as required |p be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enlerpnses Dovalopment Act, 2006 has
been determined fa liwe exient such parties have heen ideniifiad on the basis of Inforinallon avaitable with the Company.

Disclosure under Accounting Standard - 15 {revised 2005) "Employee Benefits”

The Company has classified various employee benefils.as under

Defined conlrbution plaps

The Company has dabited ihe following balancés to the Slalerment of Profit and Loss:

Perlod ended Perlod ended
September 30, 2018  Septomber 30,2016

Contribufion 1o provident and olhier funds- 11,874 10,839

11,874 10,339

Defined beneil plans

Gratuity .
Gratuity is payable la eligible employegs of the Company on superannuation, death, reli | and resignation as per the Company's scheme. The

present valua of abligalion s determined based an actuarial valualion using Projected Unit Credil Method, which recognizes each period of sarvice as
giving fise to addiiional unit of employee henefit and measures each unit separalely lo bulld up he: final obligation.

Period ended Year ended

Septembeér 30, 2016 March 34, 2046
Reconcillation In Present Value of Obligatl (PVO) - defined benefit obligation:
PVO at the beginning of the year 4277 13,722
Interest Cost 1302 1452
Current Service Cost 4285 4,574
Aclurigl (geln)fioss on obligations G564 14,528
PVO at the end of the year 46,433 34,277
Net cost for the year ended 30th September, 2018
Currant Service Cosl 4,285 4,574
Intergst on defined benefit obllgation 1,202 1,452
Expected relurn on plan assets (BRI (155,478)
Net acturial losses/(galns) recognised In year (84,628) 45,737
Effects of the limit on Para 59(b) 55,002 35,389
Total Inciuded In "Employee benefit exp: 3 (106,816} (68,728)
Acfual reiurn on plan assets 173,974 124,670
Balance with Reliante Life Insurance Company Lid.: 2.188,110 2,014,138
Assumptions used In accounting for Gratuity Plan:
Discount Rate Current : 6.80% 7.35%

Salary. Escalation Currenl 7.00% 7.00%




Rellance Blg Broadeasting Private Limited

Notes to the linancial statements for the perlod anded Saptember 30,2016

Currency In [ndlan Rupees

23

24

Other disclosures: Year ended Year ended Year ended Year énded Yoar ended
5""‘;’;‘1";’ 30, parch 34,2016 | Marchat,2018 | March 31,2014 March 31, 2013

obligation 46,433 34,277 13,722 4,821 1,359

Fair value of plan assefs 2,188.110 2,014,138 1,888,466 1,603,698 1,562,388

(Deficit) / Surplus of the plan 2141877 1,979,858 1,875,744 1,508,877 1,561,029

Experience adjusiments on defined

benefit ohllgation [loss / (gain)] 6,980 14,061 5 585 2,082 457

Experlence adjustments on falr value of

plan assets [{loss) / galn] 91,197 (31,208) 153,465 {87,586} 41,217

Other Long Term Benefits

The liability towards compensaled absences for the perlod ended 30 September, 2016 based on actuarial valualion carried out using the Projected
Accrued Benelit Method amounting lo Rs: 8296/~ (Previous periot Rs. NIV-) has been recognized in the Statement of Profll and Loss.

Segment repotiing

In accordance with Accounting Standard 17 "Segment Reporling” , the Company has determined its business segment as Teleylsion Broadeasting and
related services. Sinca, there are no other business segmenis In which thé Compsny cperates and ihe contant owned by the Company Is within India,
there are na dihér primary reportable segments.

As per Aceounting Standard 18.(AS-18) 'Relaled Parly Disclosures', ihe disclosures of transactions with the relaled partles as defined in AS-18 are given
below:

Lis! of related pariles where conirol exists and related parlles wilh wham transactions have taken place and relationships:

Uliimate Holding Company : Raliance Innoveniures Prlvate Limited

Inter fate Holding C 4 168 Ini ive Advisors Private Limiled (Formally known as AAA Entenialnmenl PvLLtd)

Holding Company : Reliance Big Entertainment Privale Limited

Fellow Subsidiary : Big Flicks Private Limiled

Wholly Owned Subsidlary : Vrushyik Broadcast Network Private Limited (Formaily known asVrushvik Advertising Privéle Limited) uple 30Ih Juns, 2018

Tiansacllons with related parly during the year / Period ;

Period ended
September 30, 2018

Year anded
March 31, 2018

Reliancs Blg Entertainment Private Limited
Transacitons during the year./ period

Loan Repaid - 6,306,150
Reimbursernent Recelved - 96,306
Closing Balance

Proference Shares 12,000,000 12,000,000
Security Pramium 1.188,000,000 1.1608,000,000
Loan Taken 484,528,661 484,528,681

Amount Recsivahle 6,347,432 B.347 432

Big Fiieks Privalo Limited

Transactions during the year / period - Nil

Closing Balance

Amount Receivable 6,889,951 6,889,954

&\
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Big Broadcasting Private-Limited

Notes to the financlal siatgments for the period endad Septomber 30, 2018

Currancy In Indlan Ripess

Viushyik Broadeast Netwark Privats Limited (Formally Known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limitad)

Transacilons during (he yesr / pariad
Interest on Loan

Reimbusement of expenses

|.aan Given

Repayment of Loan Inclusive Interest
Sale of lnvesimant

Cloalnyg Balance
Investiment in Equily
Loan Given

Interast Receivable

25 Earnings per share

ProfiU{Losa) after tex

Welghted average number of equity shares outstanding
Loss per share - Basle and Dilutéd (Rupees)

Nominal value of-an equily share (Rupaes)

Since EPS Is anll dilutive, Basic and diluted EPS are same

28 Deferred Tax Assels mainly consist of carriedforward losses and deprecialion, have not been recognized as a matter of prudence,

27 Expenditure In foreign currency

Transponder Fees

2431

1,475,714
100,000

Parlod endéd
Septamber 30, 2018

(18,311,277)
10,000
(4,931)

10

Period ended
Septembor 30, 2018

41,343,575

2,818

75,000

100,000
1,163,425
8.6858

Perlod ended
September 30,2015

{24,636,999)
10,000
(2,464}

10

Period suded
September 30,2016

33,848,322

28 The financial statements Include numbers Tor the Six month period from 1 April, 2015 10:30:Seplembsr, 2015 as comiparalive numbers to the current
period rumbers as per the requirements of AS 25 on Interim Financial Slatements. The humbers for the six month perlod from 1 April,2015 10 30
September,2015 have not been subjected 1o audit / review by the auditors.

29 Previous year's/Perlod flguras have been ragrouped/reclassifledireworkedirearranged where nacassary, to make iem comparable to those for the

currend perlod.:

As per ourReport of even dale

For M. S. Setht & Assoclates
Chartered Atcounlants
FFirm Reglstration Number: 109407W

A

/
Mana] Sethl
Proprietor
Membership Number; 39784,

Place; Mumbal
Date ; November 23, 2016

Fior and on behalf of the.Board

—

\ T
Tarun Katial
Director

DIN:G1685221

Place: Mumbai
Date ; November 23, 2018

For Reliance Riq Broadcasting Private Limited

T
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Director/Authorised Signatu:

—_—

Venkatarao Ponnada
irector
BDIN:D 503467



CHATURVEDI [ SHAH

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Big Magic Limited

Report on the Condensed Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying condensed financial statements of Big Magic Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Condensed Balance Sheet as at 30" September, 2016, the condensed
Statement of Profit and Loss and the condensed Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the six
months period ended on that date and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (collectively referred to as the ‘condensed financial statements”), annexed
herewith, The audit was conducted in accordance with the terms of engagement letter dated
01" December, 2016 as specified by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these condensed financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 25, Interim Financial Reporting, issued pursuant to the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which continue to apply as per Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

“due to fraud or error. These condensed financial statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 17" December, 2016.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these condensed financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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CHATURVEDI [ SHAH

Chartered Accountants

! Opinion

. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the condensed

" financial statements give the information required by AS 25 in the manner so required and give a true and fair

& view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
| Company as at 30" September, 2016, and its loss and its cash flows for the six months ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 37 which described that the Company’s net worth is eroded, indicating the
existence of uncertainty that may cast doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Considering the matters set out in the said note, this financial statement is prepared on a going concern basis.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

! Qther Matters

We draw attention to note no. 38 to the condensed financial statements regarding prior period comparatives.
The corresponding figures to the Condensed Statement of profit and loss, the Condensed cash flow statement
and the notes to the accounts for the period 1% April, 2015 to 30™ September, 2015 included in the condensed
financial statements as required by the reporting requirements of AS 25 have not been audited. These
condensed financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that would be required had the
abovementioned corresponding figures been audited.

and Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited with the requisite authorities and is not to be use for any other

|

|

|

1

|

|

|

‘ This report is furnished solely for the purpose of filling draft scheme of arrangement between the Company
| .

1 purpose or referred to in any document or distributed to any one without our written consent.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No:101720W

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17™ December, 2016

Continuation sheet...



BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Condensed Balance Sheet ns at 30 September 2016

Currency in Indian Rupees

Asat Asat
Particulars Notes 30 Septemher 2016 31 March 2016
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharcholder's funds
Share capital 2 500,000 500,000
Reserves and surplus (6,267,572,125) (6,021,826,403)
(6,267,072,125) (6,021,326,403)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4 6,981,122,284 6,168,107,637
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 - &
Other long-term liabilities 6 1,499,465,725 1,076,557,794
Long-term provisions 7 2,294,994 2,063,375
8,482,883,003 7,246,728,806
Current liabilities
Trade payables ]
Total Qutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpries - -
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 216,934 433 362,647,364
Other current kabilities 9 221,073,175 165,740,674
Short-term provisions 10 1,406,379 1,178,160
439,413,987 529,566,198
Tatal 2,655,224,865 1,754,968,601
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assels 11
Tangible assets 50,530,547 54,818,890
Intangible assets 902,547 1,186,383
51,433,004 56,005,273
Non-current investments 12 30,000,000 300,000,000
Long-term loans and advances 13 1,159,138,024 522,956,281
Other non-current assets 14 142,314,861 <
1,382,885,979 878,961,554
Current assets
Inventories 15 317,204,247 192,817,508
Trade receivables 16 146,793,597 104,678,283
Cash and cash equivalents 17 82,242,111 15,604,509
Short-term loans and advances 18 726,098,931 562,906,747
1,272,338,886 876,007,047
Total 2,655,224,865 1,754,968,601
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of
1-39

the condensed financial statements

As per our Report of even date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101720W

=
/Pnrag D. Melita
Partner

Membership No.: 113904

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th December 2016

¥or and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-—
=
Tarun Katfal

Director

Gaurang Mehta

Director

ra GondaH

Company Secrelary

Place: Mumbai

Date: 17th December 2016




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Condensed Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 30 September 2016

Currency in Indian Rupees

For the period For the period
ended ended
Particulurs Notes 30 September 2016 30 Septembher 2015
Income
1. Revenue from operations 19 396,974,474 237220450
11. Other income 20 62,133,008 21,833,324
111. Total Revenue (I +1I) 459,107,482 259,053,774
IV. Expenses
Direct operating expenses 21 159,757,737 343,390,906
Employee benefits expense 22 52261479 61,835,293
Finance costs 23 423,643,886 262,028,505
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 4,572,182 2,874,773
Other expenses 25 508,938,448 525,367,002
1,149,173,732 1,195,496,479
V. (Loss) before Exceptional items and tax (ITI-1V) (690,066,250) (936,442,705)
V1. Exceptional Item 26 (444,320,528) -
VIL (Loss)/Profit before tax (245,745,722) (936,442,705)
VIII. Tax expense
Current tax/ Deffered Tax -
IX. (Loss)/Profit after tax (245,745,722} (936,442,705)
X. Earnings per equity share of face value Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Basic and diluted 31 (4,914.91) (63,139.67)

Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying notes form an integral part of
the condensed financial statements 1-39

As per our Report of even date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

_—
Firm Registration No.: 101720W
-
:;—-———""_‘:"::D Y
/’:/
Parag D. Mehta Tarufriatial Gaurang Méhta
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 113904
oMo
Heeral Gondalia = °
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 17th December 2016 Date: 17th December 2016




BIG MAGIC LIMITED
Condensed Cash Flow Statement for the period ended 30 September 2016

Currency in Indian Rupees

For the period For the period
Particulars Ended 30 September Ended
2016 30 September 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss before taxes (245,745,722) (936,442.705)

Adjustments for:

Interest Income

Sundry Balances written back

Sundry Provisions written back

Finance Cost

Depreciation/Amortisation Expense

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Reversal of Provision for doubtful Loans and Interest thereon
Proyision for Dimunition in the value of Non Current Investments
Bad debts written off

Advances written off

Operating Loss before working capital changes
Adjustments for changes in working capital:

Increase in Inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in Loans and Advances

Increase in Liabilities and Provisions

Cash generated from operations

Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds )

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase / acquisition of fixed assets

Interest Received

Loans and Advances to Related Parties

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Interest Paid

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101720W

— _—
/;amg D. Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 113904

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th December 2016

(62,100,002)

(21,759.475)

(2,084,844) (12.182)
(16,170,390) .
423,643,886 262,028,505

1,572,182 2,474,773
1,866,050 :
(714,320,528) 2
270,000,000 -
2 4,514,795
4,065,845 s
(336,273,523) (688,796,289)

(124,386,739)

(80,161,951)

(43,981,364) (56,757,840)
(167,258,032) (201,827,823)
(71,671,877) 81,305,822
(743,571,535) (946,238,081)

(1,702,612) 1,826,069
(745,274,147 (944,412,012)
. (3,951,736)

52,538 235011
(426,000) (846,854,552)
(373,462) (850,571,277)
1,058,471,647 2,348,384,803
(245,457,000) (539,690,448)
(729,436) (1,866,694)
812,285,211 1,806,827,661
66,637,602 11,844,372
15,604,509 3,707,561
82,242,111 15,551,933

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-_—

liren

Y

Tarun Kattal Gaurang Mehta

Director Director

Heeral Gondalia
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th December 2016




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to Condensed financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared to comply with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
(Indian GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’) in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation / Amortization

i) Tangible Assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Cost includes
freight, duties, taxes (other than those recoverable from tax authorities) and other expenses related directly/indirectly to

the acquisition / construction and installation of the fixed assets for bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on the straight line method over the useful life of the assets as prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lower of the useful life of the asset and the lease term, on a straight
line basis.

Individual assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.
ii) Intangible Assets

Application software purchased which is not an integral part of the related software, is shown as Intangible assets and
amortized on straight line basis over its useful life, not exceeding four years, as determined by management.

Impairment

In accordance with AS 28 — ‘Impairment of Assets’ where there is an indication of impairment of the Company’s assets,
the carrying amount of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
impairment. The recoverable amount of the asset (or where applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs) is estimated at the higher of the new selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Value in use is present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Investments

Investments are classified as long term or current based on intention of the management at the time of purchase. Current
investments are valued, scrip wise, at cost or fair value , whichever is lower.

Long-term investments are carried at carrying cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined
separately for each individual investment. aic LN




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to Condensed financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

f)

g)

h)

Inventories
Inventories include television programs, music, movies and merchandise and are carried at lower of unamortized cost or
net realizable value. Where the realizable value on the basis of its estimated useful economic life is less than its carrying
amount, the difference is charged to statement of profit and loss. Television programs under production are stated at
cost. Cost comprises of material cost, cost of services and other expenses incurred up to the date of balance sheet.
i, Cost of television programs, music and movies are amortised over the licensed period where the number of runs
are unlimited. Where the runs are limited, the cost is amortised over the licensed period or on run basis whichever

is maximum on the value of content burnt.

ii.  Cost of Programs acquired or produced for multiple channels are allocated based on management estimate of the
revenue potential of the said program on respective channels.

Cost of television Programs acquired or produced in house, content being with the Company for perpetuity are
amortized over three financial years from the date of telecast as per management estimates of future revenue
potential. Program amortization commences from the date of telecast of the said program on the respective
channel or within twelve months from the date of acquisition or production whichever is earlier.

The Company evaluates the realisable value and/ or revenue potential of inventory on an annual basis and
appropriate written down is made in cases where accelerated written down is warranted.

iil. Cost of news, events and current affairs programs are amortized in the year of telecast.
iv. Merchandise is charged off to the statement of profit and loss as and when the gifts are distributed to the winners.

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and
loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

The Company’s contribution to provident fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, is charged to the statement of
profit and loss as incurred.

Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss for the year in which the employee has rendered services.

The expense is recognised at the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valuation carried out

by an independent actuary at the balance sheet date using Proj ected Unit Credit Method.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. The amount recognized as revenue is net of agency commission, trade discounts and
service tax.

Advertisement revenue from television media operations

Advertisement revenue from broadcasting is recognised, when the related advertisement appears before the public, i.e.,

on telecast.
/%\r} )
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BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to Condensed financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

)

k)

D

Graphics and Editing Revenue

Revenue from graphics and editing is recognized in accordance with the terms of the agreements with the parties.
Syndication Revenue

Revenues are recognized when the rights to use are passed on to the customers, which is generally on dispatch of goods.
Subscription Revenue

Subscription revenues are recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the contract on rendering of
services.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis.
Revenue from Television Programme Production

Revenue from Television Programme Production is recognized as and when the relevant episodes of the programmes are
delivered to the channel.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the period are recognised in
the profit and loss account of the period.

Monetary items are restated at the period ended rates. The exchange differences between the rate prevailing on the date
of transaction and on settlement/restatement (other than those relating to acquisition of fixed assets) are recognised as
income or expense, as the case may be. Non-monetary items which are carried at historical costs denominated in foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

Leases

The Company has various operating leases, principally for office space with various renewal options. Substantially all
operating leases are cancelable as well as renewable on expiry of lease term. Rental expense in agreements with
scheduled rent increases is recorded on a straight-line basis as applicable over the lease term.

Earning per Share

In determining earning per share, the company considers the net result after tax and includes the post tax effect of any
extraordinary / exceptional item. The number of shares used in computing basic earning per share is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period. The number of shares used in computing diluted earning per
share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted
average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares unless the
results would be anti-dilutive. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date.




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to Condensed financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

m) Taxation

Tax expense comprises cutrent tax expense computed in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961 and deferred tax charge or credit.

Current tax provision is made based on the tax liability computed after considering tax allowances and exemptions, in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liability or
asset is recognized for timing differences between the profits/ losses offered for income taxes and profits/ losses as per
the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future.
However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are
recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down/up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to
be realized.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the Company recognizes
it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect

of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable that
a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Preliminary Expenses

Preliminary Expenses are written off in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such expenses are incurred.




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Naotes to Condensed financial statements as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)
Currency in Indian Rupees

2 Share capital
Authorised

As at As al
30 September 2016 31 March 2016

500,000 (Previous Year: 500,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 5,000,000 5,000,000

5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
50,000 (Previous Year: 50,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each, fully paid up 500,000 500,000

500,000 500,000
a Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As al As at
30 September 2016 31 March 2016

Equity Shares No. of shares Rs. No. ol shares Rs.
At the beginning of the period/year 50,000 500,000 50,000 500,000
Add: Shares issued during the period/year - - - -
At the end of the period/year 50,000 500,000 50,000 500,000

o

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached o equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Bach shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The Company declares and pays dividends if any, in

Indian rupees. The dividend proposed if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the appraval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the

Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all prefe

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the company and shares held by the holding Company

]

rential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to

Asat As at
30 September 2016 31 March 2016
Percentage of Percentage of
No. of shares holding No. of shares holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Reliance Broadcast Network Limited and its nominees 50,000 100 50,000 100
(Holding Company)
50,000 100 50,000 100
3 Reserves and surplus Asat As at
September 30, 2016 March 31,2016
Deficit in Statement of Profit and Loss
At the commencement of the period/year (6,021,826,403) (2,364,843,079)
Add : Loss for the period/year (245,745,722 (3,156,983,324)
(6,267,572,125) (6,021,826,403)
4 Long-term borrowings As at Asat

30 September 2016

31 March 2016

Non-current

Current

6,168,107,637

Non-current Current
Unsecured
Loan from related party 6,981,122,284 -
(Refer note below note 30}
6,981,122284 -

6,168,107,637

Salient terms:

Loan from related party is the loan from the Holding Company. Interest is charged @ 13% p.a (Previous year 13% p.a). The loan shall be repayable after the end of the term of 4 years from the date

of last disbursement of loan as sanctioned vide term sheet dated 1st March 2016 and 1st April 2016




Notes to Condensed financial statements as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)

5

o

~

Deferred tax linbilities (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Related to fixed assets

Deferred Tax Assets

Other Disallowances under Income Tax Act, 1961 (Refer Note below)

Unabsorbed Depreciation / Business Loss (Refer note below)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities at the end ol the year

Note: In the absence of virtual certainty, Deferred Tax Asset has been recognized only to the exten!

depreciation and business loss.

Other long-term liabilities

Lease Rent Liability
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings

Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 28)
Gratuity
Leave Benefits

As at Asat
30 September 2016 31 Mareh 2016
1,880,813 3,216,220
1,880,813 3,216,220
1,143,724 1,001,634
737,089 2,214,586
1,880,813 3,216,220

30 S

Asat

ber 2016

{ it can be realized against reversal of deferred tax liability on account of unabsarbed

Asat
31 March 2016

504,109

1,498,961,616

510,628
1,076,047,166

1,499,465,725 1,076,557.794
As at As at
30 September 2016 31 March 2016
1,564,765 1,901,542
730,229 161,833
2,294 994 2,063,375




Notes to Condensed financial statements as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)

8 Total Outstunding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises*
Others

Asat
30 September 2016

As at
31 March 2016

216,934 433

362,647,364

216,934,433

362,647,364

*Disclosures relating to amounts payable as at the year end together with interest paid / payable to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been made in the accounts, as required under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent of information available with the Company determined on the basis of intimation received from suppliers

regarding their status and the required disclosure are given below:
Particulars
Principal amount remaining unpaid

[nterest due thereon

Interest paid by the company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

along with the amount of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the period/year.

Interest due and payable for the period/year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

Further interest cemaining due and payable even in the succeeding period until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise.

-1

Qther current linbilities

Advance from customers
Security deposits from others
Employee benefits payable
Statutory dues payable
Provision for expenses

10 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 28)
Gratuity
Leave Benefits

Asat As at
30 September 2016 31 March 2016
7,268,723 9,188,272
610,000 610,000
7,944,893 22,832,164
7,068,432 16,500,885
198,181,127 116,609,353
221,073,175 165,740,674
As al Asal
30 September 2016 31 March 2016
787,069 1,037,787
619,310 140,373
1,406,379 1,178,160

\
A\
i N,
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Notes to Condensed financial statements as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)

12 Non-current investments
Non Trade investments (Unquoted and at cost)

Investments in Equity instruments

In Associnte Company

Azalia Broadeast Private Limited

32,071,427 (Previous year: 32,071,427) Equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up
Less: Pravision for Dimunition in the value of [nvestments (Refer Note a)

Investments in Preference shares

Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited

300,000,000 (Previous year: Nil) 8% Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Re. | each, fully paid up

Less: Provision for Dimunition in the value of Investments (Refer Note 26 (c) )

Apgregate amount of unquoted investment
Aggregate provision for diminution in the value of investments

13 Long-term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security Deposits

Loans and Advances to related party (Refer Note 30)
Less: Provision for Loans and Advances to related party

Advance tax and tax deducted at sources

14 Other non-current assets

Tnterest accrued but not due on loans and advances
Less: Provision for Interest accrued on loans and advances

15 Inventories
Unamortised cost of television programs, movie and other rights

Merchandise
Less: Provision for obsolsence

16 Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good

Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Other Debts

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Other Debts

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts

As at

30 September 2016

As at

41,517,000 41,517,000
(41,517,000) (41,517,000)
300,000,000 300,000,000

(270,000,000) -

30,000,000 300,000,000
341,517,000 341,517,000
311,517,000 41,517,000
As at As at

30 September 2016 31 March 2016
150,700,000 190,700,000
952,479,131 952,053,131

- (634,053,131)
952,479,131 318,000,000
15,958,893 14,256,281
1,159,138.024 522,956,281
Asat Asat

30 September 2016

31 March 2016

142,314,361 80,267,397

- (30,267,397)
142,314,861 -
Asat Asat

30 September 2016

31 March 2016

317,204,247

3,894,390
(3,894.390)

192,817,508

3,394,390

(3,894.390)

317,204,247

192,817,508

Asat

30 September 2016

As at

31 March 2016

855,124 8,412,006
145,938,473 96,266,277
146,793,597 104,678,283

9,427,646 7,561,596
9,427,646 7,561,596
156,221,243 112,239,879
(9.427.646) (7.561,596)
146,793,597 104,678,283

Note: Trade Receivables include Rs. 57,360 (Previous Year: Rs. 10,129,506/-) due from Private Companies in which the Company’s Director is a Director.




Notes to Condensed financial ts nis at 30 September 2016 (Conti 1)

17

18

20

21

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks - in current accounts
Cash on hand

Short-term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to vendors

Security deposits

Loans and advances to employees

Prepaid expenses

CENVAT credit receivable

Unsecured, considered Doubtful
Other advances
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances

Revenue from operations

Revenue from Operations
Income from media operations

Barter Sales
Less: Barter Expenses

Other Operating Revenue
Syndication Revenue
Subscription Revenue
Royalty Income
Sundry Balances written back
Sundry Provisions written back

Total revenue from operations

Other income

Interest income on:
Tncome tax refund
Loans and advances to related parties

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)

Direct operating expenses

Television Programme, Content and Other Praduction Expenses:
Opening - Inventory
Add: Commissioned / acquisition
Production Expenses

- Equipment Hire Charges

- Professional Fees

- Other Production Expenses
Less: Closing - Inventory

Placement Fees

As at
30 September 2016

As at
31 March 2016

82,240,091 15,602,489

2,020 2,020

32,242,111 15,604,509
Asat As at

30 September 2016

31 March 2016

234,731,730 23,324,095
949,510 2,125,000
2,274,803 306,360
978,253 83,325,690
487.011.446 453,672,413
725,945,742 562,753,558
831,134 831,134
(677,945) (677,945)
153,189 153,189
726,098,931 562,906,747

For the period

For the period

ended ended
30 September 2016 30 September 2015
377,392,072 231,267,705
377,392,072 231,267,705
724,000 1,989,250
(368,750) 2
355,250 1,989,250
377,747,322 233,256,955
814,759 &
148,350 3,951,313
8,809 -
2,084,344 12,182
16,170,390 ”
19,227,152 3,963,495
396,974,474 237,220,450

For the period

For the period

ended ended
30 September 2016 30 September 2015
= 235,011
62,100,002 21,524,464
33,006 73,849
62,133,008 21,833,324

For the period
ended

30 September 2016

192,817,508

For the period
ended
30 September 2015

543,560,771

283,291,549 261,020,632
- 78,560

491,000 272,000
361,927 433,665
(317,204,247) (623,722,722)
159,757,737 181,642,906

161,748,000

159,757,137

343,390,906




Notes to Condensed financial ts as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)

For the period For the period
ended ended
30 September 2016 30 September 2015

22 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus 49,529,633 58,844,716
Contribution to Provident and other funds 1,836,436 2,515,186

Gratuity Expense (587,495) -

Leave Encashment 1,108,487 =
Staff Welfare Expenses 374,418 475,391
52261479 61,835,293

For the period For the period

ended ended

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

23 Finance costs

Interest Expense 423,643,386 262,028,505
423,643 886 262,028,505
For the period For the period
ended ended

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

24 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets 4,288 346 2,141,117
Amortisation of intangible assets 283,836 733,656
4,572,182 2,874,773
For the period For the period
ended ended

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

25 Other expenses

Advertisements and publicity expenses 119,444,970 143,573,125
Bank Charges 1,567,097 3,871,373
Bad Debts - 4,514,795
Advance written off 4,065,845 -
Business Promotion 761,184 2,488,700
Communication Expenses 490,305 548,346
Computer / Internet / Intranet 2,339,366 2,147,082
Conference Expense - 86,251
Distribution and advertisements rights expenses 280,291,258 304,369,196
Duties and Taxes 4,255,294 2,393,238
Electricity Charges 343,512 263,011
Employee Recruitment Fees - 1,010,737
Housekeeping Charges 111,855 99,311
Insurance 111,448 -
Legal and Professional Fees 19,248,956 16,020,930
Management and Distribution service fees 55,975,837 39,390,000
Payment to Auditor (Refer note below) 400,000 -
Printing and Stationery 29,106 20,994
Rent, Rates and Taxes 3,997,128 1,347,200
Repairs and Maintenance
- Repairs to Machinery 201,813 165,188
- Repairs to Others 775,187 163,144
Sales Incentive 11,551,756 -
Security Charges 152,225 96,410
Travelling and Conveyance 729,320 2,059,858
Provision for Doubtful Debts 1,866,050 -
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 228,936 232,113
508,938,448 525,367,002

Payment to auditor [excluding service tax]
As auditor:
Audit fee 400,000 -

400,000 o

&

).

-
o
(o B

Mumbai



Notes to Condensed financial statements as at 30 September 2016 (Continued)

For the period For the perind
ended ended
30 September 2016 30 September 2015
26 Exceptional Item
Reversal of Provision for doubtful Loans and Interest thereon (refer note (a) and (b) below) (714,320,528) -
Provision for diminution in the value of Non- Current investments (refer note (c) below) 270,000,000 -

(444,320,528) -

Note:

a) The Company had advanced loan lo its fellow subsidiary namely Reliance Television Private Limited (RTPL) of which outstanding loan amount as at 3 1st March 2016 was Rs 358,727,083 and
Interest Accrued thereon was Rs 33,781,571, The Company on a prudent basis, had made a provision of the said loans and interest accrued theron of Rs 74,508,654 during the year ended 31st
March 2016. Since the entire loan and interest amount has been recovered after the Balance sheet Date, hence provision for Doubtful Loans and Interest is written back.

b) The Company had advanced loan to its fellow subsidiary namely Cinestar Advertising Private Limited (CAPL) of which outstanding loan amount as at 31st March 2016 1s Rs 593,326,048 and
Interest Accrued thereon is Rs 46 485,826, During FY 2014-15, ABPL had scaled down its operations significantly. Hence, on a prudent basis, the Company had made a provision of the said loan
and interest accrued thereon of Rs 639,811,874 during the year ended 3 Ist March 2016, Since the entire loan and interest amount has been recovered after the Balance sheet Date, hence provision
for Doubtful Loans and Interest is written back.

c) The Company had made Investment in 300,000,000 8% Cumulative Redemable Preference Shares of Rs 1 each in Reliance Big Broadcasting Private Limited. On 8th November 2016, Company
has sold entire shares for Rs 30,000,000 after incurring loss of Rs 270,000,000. Hence Company has made provision for diminution in the value of Investments of Rs 270,000,000.
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

Currency in Indian Rupees

27 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

As at
30 September 2016

Asat
31 March 2016

Income tax demand (Tax deducted at source)

671,720

960,710

28 Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the period are as under :

Particulars

For the period ended
30 September 2016

For the period ended
30 September 2015

Employers contribution to Provident fund and other funds

1,836,436

2,515,186

Other long term employee benefits comprises encashment of leave. The obligation for leave encashment is recognised based on actuarial valuati
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the current period is Rs. 1,108,487 /-

Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuari

L. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation

on carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Expense

al valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for leave encashment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

. Asat Asat

Particulars
30 September 2016 31 March 2016

Gratuity (Unfunded)
Defined Benefit obligation at beginning of the year 2,939,329 2,434,526
Current Service Cost 368,358 614,602
Interest Cost 116,026 208,732
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1,071,879) 206,082
Liabilities assumed on Acquisition / (Settled on Divestiture) - 5
Benefits Paid - (524,613)
Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 2,351,834 2,936,329
I1. Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

5 Asat Asat
Particul
F“ e 30 September 2016 31 March 2016
Gratuity (Unfunded)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year/period e -
Present value of obligation at the end of the year/period 2,351,834 2,939,329
Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet 2,351,834 2,939,329

11T Expense/(Income) recognised during the year/period

Particulars

For the period ended

For the period ended

30 September 2016 30 September 2015

Gratuity

Current Service Cost 368,358 @
Interest Cost 116,026 @
Expected return on plan assets . @
Actuarial (gain) / loss (1,071,879) @
Past Service Cost & @
Losses/ (Gains) on "Acquisition / Divestiture” - @
Expense/(Income) recognised during the year/period (587,495) @

@ Company has not made the acturial valuation for calculation of Gratuity Liability for the period ended 30th September 2015.




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

IV. Investment details Nil Nil
V. Experience Adjustments
Particulars Asat Asat Asat As at Asat Asat
30 September 31 March 2016 31 March 2015 | 31 March 2014 31 March 2013 31 March 2012
2016
Defined Benefit Obligation 2,351,834 2,939,329 2,434,526 1,454,052 1501297 845,200
Plan Assets - . - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (2,351,834) (2,939,329) (2,434,526) (1,454,052) (1,511,297) (845,200)
Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities (1,106,440) 158,879 406,999 229,780 349,034 35,653
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets - - - - - -
V1. Actuarial assumptions
As at 30 September 2016 As at 31 March 2016
Particulars Gratui Leave
: r: u;tl:j Encashment Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave
(Unfunded) (Unfunded) Encashment (Unfunded)
2006-08

Mortality Table (LIC) 2006-08 (Ultimate) (Ultimate) 2006-08 (Ultimate) 2006-08 (Ultimate)
Discount rate (per annum) 6.80% 6.80% 7.35% 735%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) - - - -
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

The estimates for rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion

29 Disclosure of Segment Reporting under AS 17

and other relevant factors. The above information is certified by the actuary.

Particulars Content Broadcasting Post Production Services Total

30 5;%‘:;"’” L S;‘;‘fﬁ“’h"" 30 September 2016| °° S;‘;‘:;""” 30 September 2016 | 30 September 2015
Segment Revenue 396,974,474 237,220,450 6,507,180 6,778,398 403,481,654 243,998,848
Inter Segment Revenue - - 6,507,180 6,778,398 6,507,180 6,778,398
Total Revenue 396,974,474 237,220,450 - - 396,974,474 237,220,450
Result
Segment Result (Loss) Profit (324,435,121)|  (690,291,980) 309,866 322,781 (324,125,255) (689,969,199)
TUnallocated Corporate Expenses
(Met of Unallocated Income) (502,023,418) (15,554,999)
Finance Costs 423,643,886 262,028,505
Income Taxes - -
Net Loss After Tax (245,745,722) (936,442,705)
Other Information
Segment Assets 1,422,878,007 1,320,597,360 9,168,162 17,209,901 1,432,046,169 1,337,807,261
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - - 1,223,178,696 1,186,106,487
Segment Liabilities 429,924,817 528,574,049 1,695,500 1,695,500 431,620,317 530,269,549
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities - - - - 8,490,676,673 5,794,429,983
Capital Expenditure - 3,951,736 - - - 3,951,736
Depreciation and amortisation 3,873,192 1,628,580 698,990 1,246,193 4,572,182 2,874,173

The Company has disclosed the Business Segment as primary segment. The business of the Company i

taking into account the nature of the business, differing risk and returns, the organization structure and internal reporting system.

Content broadcasting , which principally consists of developing, producing and procuring television programmin

subscription and syndication.
Post Production Services consists of Graphics and editing of television programs,

Segment Revenues, Segment Results, Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities mclude
Expenses which are not directly attributable to any Business Segment are shown as un:

part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively. The Company's operations are mainly col

reportable geographical segments

30 Disclosure of Related Party under AS 18

Ultimate Holding Company
Reliance Land Private Limited

the respective amounts identifiab

s divided into two segments - Content Broadeasting and Post Production. The Segments have been identified

g and film content and delivering via satellites, thereby earning revenues by way of advertisement,

le to each segment as also the amounts allocable on a reasonable basis. Income and

allocated corporate income / expenses. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as

nfined within India. The Company does not have material earnings outside India. As such there are no
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees

Holding Company
Reliance Broadcast Network Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Companies
Cinestar Advertising Private Limited
Reliance Television Private Limited
RBN USLLC

Vrushvik Broadeast Network Private Limited (Formerly known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited ) (w.e.f 30 June, 2016)

Subsidiarv/Step down Subsidia
Azalia Distribution Private Limited
Reliance TV US LLC

GVTYV Deveo LLC

Georgeville Television LLC

Associate Company

Azalia Broadcast Private Limited (formerly known as BIG RTL Networks Private Limited)

Transactions with Related Parties

Companies of Fellow Subsidiary Companies

Particulars

Asat
30 September 2016

Asat
31 March 2016

Holding Company
Reliance Broadcast Network Limited

Loan Taken

Opening Balance

Add: Taken during the period/year
Less: Repaid during the period/year
Closing Balance

Rendering of Services
Income from media operations

Receipt of Services

Advertisements and publicity expenses
Management, distribution service fees and Facility Sharing Charges

Reimbursement of Expenses paid

Interest Expenses

Closing Balance
Sundry Creditors
Interest Payable

Fellow Subsidiary

Reliance Television Private Limited

Loans Given

Opening Balance

Add: Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Loans
Add: Given during the year

Less: Received back during the year

Less: Provision for doubtful loans
Closing Balance

Recelpt of Services
Reimbursement of Expenses paid

Interest Income

6,168,107,637
1,058,471,647
245,457,000

3,268,906,064
4,119,806,394
1,220,604,821

6,981,122.284

6,168,107,637

3,237,900

112,384,096
55,213,756

3,288,438

422,241,299

25,778,176
1,498,288,466

6,557,100

61,431,076
39,390,000

3,828,090

260,161,811

1,076,047,166

318,000,000 60,000,000
40,727,083 .
5,901,000 347,020,774
(18,000,000) (48,293,691
346,628,083 358,727,083
- (40,727,083)
346,628,083 318,000,000
748,092 -
23,021,362 9,172,675




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016

Currency in Indian Rupees

Closing Balance
Sundry Creditors
Interest Receivable (Previous year: Nil (Net of provision Rs. 33,781,571/-)

Cinestar Advertising Private Limited

Loans Given

Opening Balance

Add: Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Loans
Add: Given during the year

Less: Received back during the year

Less: Provision for doubtful loans
Closing Balance

Interest Income

Closing Balance
Interest Receivable (Previous year: Nil (Net of provision Rs. 46,485,826/-))

Vrushvik Broadeast Network Private Limited (Formerly known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited )
Loans Taken

Opening Balance

Add: Taken during the period/year
Less: Repaid during the period/year
Closing Balance

Loans Given

Opening Balance

Add: Given during the year

Less: Received back during the year
Closing Balance

Interest [ncome

Interest Expense

Closing Balance
Interest Receivable (Previous year: Nil)

Interest Payable (Previous year: Nil)
Associate Company

Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Loans Given

Opening Balance

Add: Given during the year
Less: Received back during the year

Interest Income

Closing Balance

Interest Receivable (Previous year: Nil)

Investments in Equity Shares (Net of Provision Rs 41,517,000)(Previous Year Rs 41,517,000)
Subsidiary/Step down Subsidiary Companies of Fellow Subsidiary Companies

Azalia Distribution Private Limited

Closing Balance
Sundry Debtors

L—

862,404
56,786,818

593,326,048
12,175,000
(2,400,000)

1,118,716,496
(525,390,448)

603,101,048

593,326,048
(593,326,048

603,101,048

38,987,327

85,445,862

105,000,000
(105.000,000)

12,351,789

2,750,000

2,750,000
89,887

747,945

80,898

673,150

1,000,000
1,000,000

1,426

1,283

1,717,500

Note: Balance for the previous year are as at 31st March 2016 and all transactions are for the six months period ended 30th September 2015.




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees
31 Earnings Per Share (‘EPS")

For the period ended

For the period ended

Particulars 30 September 2016 30 September 2015
Net (loss) available for equity sharcholders (245,745,722) (936,442,705)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 50,000 50,000
Basic/ Diluted Eamnings Per Share (4,914.91) (18,728.85)
Nominal value per share 10 10
32 Foreign currency exposures (other than investments) not covered by forward contracis
As at 30 September 2016 Asat 31 March 2016
. Currency Foreign Currency | Amount - Indian |  Foreign Currency Amount - Indian Rupees
Particulars
Amount Rupees Amount
Trade Receivables UsDb 19,343 1,289,397 7,043 440,827
Trade Payables usD 121,835 8,121,473 153,500 9,084,622
GBP 5,929 512,446 6,796 563,818
33 Expenditure in foreign currency
) For the period ended | For the period ended
Particulars
30 September 2016 30 September 2015
Content Cost 2,073,400 5,013,884
2,073,400 5,013,884
34 Earnings in foreign currency
i For the period ended | For the period ended
P,
it 30 September 2016 _| 30 September 2015
Subscription Revenue - 3,951,313
Syndication Revenue 814,759 -
814,759 3,951,313
35 Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to fellow Subsidiary
Loans and advances in the nature of loans:
Maximum
Name of the Company Relationship Balance during | 30 September 2016 31 March 2016
the period
Reliance Television Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 362,242,083 346,628,083 358,727,083
Cinestar Advertising Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 603,101,048 603,101,048 593,326,048
Vrushvik Broadcast Network Private Limited (Formerly known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited ) Fellow Subsidiary 2,750,000 2,750,000 -
Azalia Broadcast Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary 1,000,000 - -

Loans and advances shown above, to
supplemental term sheets i.e. 13 March, 2015 and 1 May 2015 or the date of disbursement of loan whichever is later.

(@)

Reliance Television Private Limited fall under the category of unsecured loans and advances, repayable after four years from the date of signing of the term sheet and

(b) Loans and advances shown above, to Cinestar Advertising Private Limited fall under the category of unsecured loans and advanees, repayable after four years from the date of signing of the term sheet ie. 1

April, 2015 or the date of disbursement of loan whichever is later.

(¢) Loans and advances shown above, to Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited (Formerly known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited) fall under the category of unsecured loans and advances, repayable after
four years from the date of signing of the term sheet ie. 1 April, 2016 or the date of disbursement of loan whichever is later.

(d) Loans and advances shown above, to Azalia Broadcast Private Limited fall under the category of unsecured loans and advances, repayable after four years from the

2016 or the date of disbursement of loan whichever is later.

(&) The above loans given to Companies are for "General Business Purpose”.

date of signing of the term sheet i.e. 1 April,




BIG MAGIC LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2016
Currency in Indian Rupees
36 Details of loans given, Investment made and guarantees given covered under section 186(4) of The Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the Company 30 September 2016 31 March 2016 Purpose

Reliance Television Private Limited 346,628,083 358,727,083 |Refer below note 36 (a)
Cinestar Advertising Private Limited 603,101,048 593,326,048 |Refer below note 36 (a)
Vrushvik Broadcast Network Private Limited (Formerly known as Vrushvik Advertising Private Limited ) 2,750,000 - |Refer below note 36 {a)

a) The above loans given to Companies are for "General Business Purpose”.
b) For Investments Refer Mote 12

37 The Company's net worth has eroded. However, having regards to the financial support from one of the promoter of its Holding Company, the Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis that the

Company is 2 going concemn and that no adjustments are required to the carrying value of the Assets and Liabilities.

38 The Financial Statement include numbers for the six months period from 1st April 2015 to 30th September 2015 as comparative numbers to the current period numbers as per the requirements of AS 25 on

Interim Financial Statements. The numbers for the six months period from Ist April 2015 to 30th September 2015 have not been subjected to audit/ review by the auditors.

39 Previous year's/period's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s/period's classification / disclosure.

As per our report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Firm Registration No.: 101720W
Chartered Accountants

:_—'—_'—;:"—_:_::D /
/Parag D. Mehta

Partner
Membership No. 113904

Place: Mumbai
Date: 17th December 2016

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

O

Marnns

Tarun K?ial Gaurang Mehta
Director Director
ceral Gondﬂh}
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: |1 7th December 2016




Shridhar‘ & Associates

Chartered Accountants

To the Board of Directors of Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Report on the Standalone Interim Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone interim financial statements of Azalia Broadcast
Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 30 September 2016,
the statement of profit and loss for the six months then ended, the statement of cash flows and
the statement of changes in equity for the six months then ended and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Interim Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these standalone interim
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, read with relevant rules
issued there under.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assels of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the interim financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone interim financial statements based
on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the standalone interim financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to

Certified True Copy

For AZALIA BROADCAST PRIVATE LIMITED.

el

Shridhar & Associates, 104, Kanaiya, 250/B, Linking Road, Bandra (W), Mumbai - 400 050. Head Office ‘
B+ 91(22) 26512906 /0T/ F : +91 {g.?) 26512907, Email: info@shridharandassociates.com Director

......




obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone interim financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the standalone interim financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone interim financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the standalone interim financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that ar¢ appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion o whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone interim financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate-to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone interim financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us,
the aforesaid standalone interim financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 30™ Sep, 2016 and its
Profit and Loss & its Cash flows for the six month ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements regarding accumulated losses exceeding
the net worth of the Company and the financial statements being prepared on going concern
basis. Our opinion is not qualified in this respect.

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 134427W

/

el 5"?4;;:’!&/?

Certified True Copy

Jiteridra Savyjimly

Partner

Membership Number: 050980
Mumbai

15" November, 2016
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Azalig Broadcast Private Limited
Balance Sheet

As at As at
September 20
Not ! | . 2016
ote — March 31, 2
Rupees Rupees
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Sharehoiders’ funds
Share cagilal 4 641,428,540 B41,428,540
Reserves and surpius 5 (636,073 937 {668.373.785)
Interunit Balance &
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provisicns & 37,587 5.530

Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings i 7 106,308,558 G5 548 588
Trade Payables

Tatal Quistanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterpries
Total Quistanding dues of credilors clher than micro anlarprises

and smail enterprises 3 14,126,385 14,B0B, 339
Cther current liabilities ] 13,794,238 9,110,345
Shart-igrm provisiens 16 17,842 950
Total 89,733,320 42,527,099
ASSETS
Mon-current assets
Fixed assefs
Tangible asssls 11 95,654 187,013

Intangitle assels i1 27,068 52,088
Long-larm loans and advances 12 84,593,997 83,523.712
Current assets )

[nventonies 12 887,272 2.5726.928. _
Trade raceivables 14 - -
Cash and bank balancas 15 150,837 2,425,388
Short-terin loans and advances 18 3,868,492 3,861,682
Total 89,733,320 92,527,088
The notes are an intearal part of these financial statemeants.
This is the Balance Shael referred te in our repod of even data.
For Shridhar & Associates For and on hehalf of the Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg:stration Number: 134427W ‘

itendra Sawjiany Tarun Katial Asheesh Chalterjee

Partner
Membership Mumber: 05088¢

Director Certified True Copy

. Manih Gupta
ﬁﬁ% Secrelary

Place: Mumba: Plzce: Mumbai

Date: 15h Navember, 2015 . Date: 1:FOMRABRBADCAST PRIVATES!
s




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

Period ended Period ended
Nots September 30, September 30,
2018 . 2018
Rupees Rupees
Revenue
Revenue from operations 17 ) - 585,286
ther income 15 25,042 13,850
Total revenue 25,042 599,236
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 13 470,560 2,379,405
Depreciation and amorization expense : 20 36,358 118,574
Other expensas 21 11,623,582 26,447,891
Interest expense 22 5,584 716 2,070,011
Totzal expenses 17,725,216 32,015,885
Loss before tax 17,700,174 31,416,649
Tax expense - =
Loss for the year 17,700,174 321,416,649
Loss per equily share {Nominal value per share: Rs 10} 23
Basic and Diluted 0.03 0.05
The notes are an integral part of thess financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Shridhar & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 134427W o

\ (,l,u?_w»

ra Sawj}any * Tarun Katial “Asheesh Chatterjee
Partner ) {\, Director / Dirzctor
Mernbership Number: 050880:5" — = &_},

J

~Cormpany Sscratary

Certified True Copy

Placs: Mumbai R Place: Mumbal i
Date: 15th November, 2018 Date: 15th November, 2016




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement

A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss bafore taxation
Adjustments far.
Deprecialion and amortization sxpenss
inierest expense
Txcess Provision written Back
interest on Incomea Tax refund
Operating profit / (loss) vefors working capital changes
Adiustments for changss i working capial:
Trade and sther raceivaties
Invaniories
Trade and other payabies
Cash used in cperations
Tax Refund(net of payments}
Net cash generated from J{used) in operating activities
B Cash flow from investing activitias
Purchase of fixed asseis
Proceeds from sale of fixed assels
intersst on fixed depesits
Met cash generated from J (used in} investing activities

¢ Cash fiow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equily shares

Period ended

September 30, 2016

S —
Period ended

Septembier 30, 2015

Rupees Rupees
(17700174} {31,418,64%)
35,358 118,579
5,524,718 3,070,011
{2.578) -
(22,483} {13.850)

{12,084,142)

{1,352 558)
1,529,655
(1,535,742}

(13,453,788;

329 237

(78,568 ,347)

267 489

(13,124,549

(28,298,859)

Procesds from unsacursd loan {net of repayment) 10,850,000 28,455 GO0
Net cash generated from financing activities 10,850,000 28,455,000
Net increase in Gash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (2,274,549) 155,141
Cash and Cash Equivalents a5 &t the commencement of the periad 2,425,386 48,373
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the period

Cash on hand & -

Balancas with banks 150,837 2072.614

e e s
Net Increase / (decrease) as disclosed above (2,274,548) 156,141
" This is the Cash Flow Statemsnt referred {0 in our report of even dats.
For Shridhar & Associates Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors s
Charterad Accountanis CI— Certlﬁed Tru 2 C OPY
Firm Ragistration Number: 134427W \ a—
o ers—
-

T2 Sawjiany
Partner
Membarship Number: 050955

Tarun Kstial ;
’\\ Dir=glor /
\~

pany Secretary

Placa: Mumbai lace: i‘.hum‘nai

Date: 15th November, 20

Asheesh Chatiarjee

Oate: 15th Novamber, 2018

Director

For AZALIA BROADCAST PRIVATE LIMITED.

EATE-

Director




Azalia Broadeast Private Limited

Motss to the financial siat

2.2

23

2.4

r the period ended September 30, 2015

General information

The Company is engaged in developing, operating. marketing, promoting and launching television channels in India.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost cenvention on the accrual basis of
accounting and in accordance with 1he Generally Accepted Accounting Principie In india to comply with the Accounting
Standards Under Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Use of Estimates

The preparaticn of condensed financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAPY
in india requires management to make estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liahilities and the disclosures of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual resuits could differ
from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Revenue Recognition

Advertisement revenue from broadeasting is recognised. net of agency commissions, when the related adveriisement
appears bsfora the public, i.e.. on tetecast.

ravenue from services provided is recognised when persuasive avidence of an arrangement exists, the consideration is
fixed or determinable and it is reasonable to expsct Utimate collection. Such revenuss are recognised as the services are
provided.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rales prevailing on the date of the transactions. Gains and
losses arising on account of differsnces in foreign exchange rates on settiement | translation of monetary items are
recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss. Non-Monetary items denominate¢ in foreign currency are stated atthe
rate pravailing on the date of the fransaction.

2.5 Tangible Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulatad impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent expenditures related fo an itern of fixad assets are added to its book value only if they increase the future
henefits from the exisling assat beyond its praviously assessad standard of performance.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Depreciation is provided on 2 pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimatad useful ives of the assets or
the rates prescribed under schedule Il to tne Companies Act, 2013 which, in management's opinien, reflects the
estimated useful lives of those fixed assets.

Assats costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated at 100 percent in the year of purchase. Other assets are depreciated
from the month of asset put to use till the menth of sale of the assel.

2.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assels are stated at acquisition cosl, net of sceumulated amortization and accumulated impairmeant losses, if
any. e




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited

Natas to the fnancial statements as of and for the period andsd

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Intangible assels are amortised on a sbiaight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from the disposai of an intangible asset are determined as the differance betwsen the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of purchased programmes and movies which are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
The cost of purchased programs and movies is amortized on a straight-line basis over the license period or at such higher
rates basad on the management estimates of revenues from each of these rights.

Employee Benefits

(i} Short terrm employes benefits:
Afl employee tenefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short ferm
employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short term employee benafits expected 1o be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are charged off Lo the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Defined contribution plan:
Contribution towards provident fund for all employzes is made lo the regulatory authorities, where the Company has
no further cbligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Conirbution Plans as the Company does nol carry any
further ohligaticns, apart fram the contributions made on a maonthly basis.

(i) Defined benefit plan:
The Company provides for gratuity, a Defined Benefil Plan {the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible empioyees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vesied
employess at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective
employee’s salary and the tenure of employmient. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Aciuarial losses! gains are recognisad in the Staiement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise,

(ivy Compensated absences:
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expecied to be availed within 12 months from the end of the period
end are treated as short tarm employee bensfits. The obligation towards tha same is measured at the expected cost
of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a resuli of the unused
entitlemant as at the period end. o
Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed beyond 12 months from the end of the year
end are treated as other long term employes benefits. The Company’s liabifity is actuarially determined {using the
Projectad Unit Credit methed) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Accounting for Taxes on Income

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1981.

Deferrad tax resulting from timing differences between book and taxable grofit is accounted for using the tax rates and
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. The deferrad tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future.
Howsver in respect of unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss, the deferred tax assal is recognised and carried
forward only to the exient that there is a virtual certainty that the asseis will be realised in future.

Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether inere is any indication that an assel may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverabie amount of the
asset or recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amaunt. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. - &
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Mat

211

2142

213

to the financial statements as of and for the pariod ended Septamber 36, 2016

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions® Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation ag a resuit of a past event, it is probable that an
ouiflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation and there iz a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to setile the
present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are not discounted to its present value.

Caontingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible ohiigaticn ansing from past events, the
existence of which will he confinmed only by the occurregnce of nof occurence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the company or 2 present obligation that arises from past evenis where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to setile or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with barks, ciher short term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less,

Earnings per Share

Baaic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Eamings considered in ascertaining the
Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the pericd after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax
tharato for the period. The weightsd average oumber of equity shares outstanding during the period and for ail periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prafit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weightad average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares

Going Concern Assumption

The Company has accumulated losses as at September 30, 2015, resulting in erosion of the Gompany's net warth. The
management of lhe Company is confident of its ability to continue operations for a foreseeable future. In view of erosion
of net worth of the Company arising from operating losses, Reliance Broadcast Networks Limited (the ultimate holding
Company. an entity exercising joint control as of September 30, 2016 and control subsequent to the pericd-end) have
infarmed the Company of their intentions to meet their abligations as they fall due. Basad on the business plan for the
upcoming year noted by the Board aof Directors and the financial support from Reliance Broadcast Networks. Limited to
meel the Company's chligations as they fall due, the financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis.




Azaiia Broadcast Private Limitad
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the period ended September 20, 2014

As at

4 Share capital September 30, 2018

Rupegs
Authorised ==

5,000,000 {Previous year: 65 400,000} aquily shares of ¢ each 850.000.0G0

issuad,Subseribad and Paid up

£4,142 354 (Previous year 8,41.42 2584} equily sharzs of Rs 10 each 8541 428 340

As at
fMarch 31, 2018
Rupees

£41,428,540

541,423,540 641,423,540
Paid up
{a) Reconciliation of number shares As at'Sep 30, 2016 As atMarch 31, 2015
Ho. of shares Amount No. of shares. Amount
Ealance as at the beamning of th 34,142,854 £41,428 544 £4,142,854 841,425 840
Shearas issued . s
Balance as atthe end of the year 64,142,854 641,428,540 64,142,854 641,428,540

b} Rights, preferencas and restrictions attached to shares
ghts, p

Tha Company has one class of cguly shares having a par value of Rs 10 par
Diractors is subject to the agproval of the sharchcidars in the ensuing Annusl
are sligicle to racelve the rematning assets of the Company after d ution af

(c} Details of shares held by shareholders halding mere than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at
September 30, 2616
No. ol shares
Cinestar Adverlising Private Uimited 32,971,427
{50%:)

Big Magic Limied

et
T

A

slerential amounts, in prepotion 1o their shareholding

As at
March 31, 2016
Mo. of shares

32071,427




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the period ended September 30, 2016

As at As at
el [
5 Reserves and Surplus September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016
Rupees Rupees
Securities Premium Account
Salance gs at the beginning of the ysar 371,289,832 371,269,832
Add: Premium on issue of shares - -
Balance as at the end of the year 371.258.632 371,269,632
Deficit in Staterment of Profit and Loss
Balance as at he beginning of the year (1,039.643,295) (578,337 841)
Less for the year (17,700,174) {63,305 554)
Balance as at the end of the year (1,057,243,568; (1,039,843.385)
(686.073,837) [668,373,763)
6 Long-term provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provisions for gratuity (Rafer note 12) 28,344 2,448
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 19) 9,743 1.081
37,587 3,530
7 Short-term borrowings
Unsecured loan from Cinestar Advertising Private Limited 106,328,558 95,548,558
106,398,558 95,548,558
B Trade Payables
rade payables ' 14,128,385 14,808,339
14,126,385 14,808,339

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Scale Businass Enterprises, lo whom the Company owes dues, which are cutsianding for more
than 45 days as at Seplember 30, 2018. This information as requirad to be disciosad under the Micre, Smalt and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2008 has beer: determinad lo the extent such pariies have been ideniified on the basis of information available with
the Company.

9 Other current liabilities

Employee dues Payable - 1,358

Statutory dues payabie 16,531 922,494

Interast Accrued but not due (Payable to CAPL) 13,781,807 8,187.082
13,798,338 9,110,945

10 Shori-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Provisions for gratuity (Refer note 13} 10,015 12

Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 18) 7.834 33

17,849 950
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Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements as of and for the Period ended September 30, 2016

As at As at
12 Long-term loans and advances September 30, 2016 March 31, 2016
{Unsecurzd. considered good} Rupees Rupees
Security depasits 5,388,878 5,388,879
Advance income {ax T12.2381 1.018,155
Bzlance with sarvice tax authoritizs 78484757 77117878
~ 84,593,997 83,523,712
13 Inventories
Unamoriised cost of programme and movie rights §97.272 2,526,828
597,272 2,526,923
14 Trade receivables
{Unsecured, considered doubiiul )
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months ‘ 1,252,898 1,255,174
from the date they are due for payment
Cthars - &
252,598 1,255174
Less - Provision for doubtiul receivabies (1,252,593} (1,258,174}
15 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Bank halances :
- in currant accounts 150,837 T 2,425,386
- in fixed deposit = -
150,837 2,425,386
18 Short-term loans and advances
(Unsscured, considered guod)
Advance lo vendors 3.885,492 3,886,092
Others 5,000 5,000

3,868,492 3,897,982
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Azalia Broadecast Private Limited
Neotes to the financial statements as of and for the period ended September 3

0, 2016

20

21

23

24

25

Depreciation and amortisation Expense

Depraciation on tangible assats
Amortisation on intangibie assels

Period ended

Period ended

Other expenses

Contsnt cost
Placement fee
Telecast and uplinking fees
Lagal, prefessional and consultancy fees
rMarksting and distribution expenses
Starnp duty and filing fees
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Paymant o auditors
-audit fezs
Bank chargas

Miscellaneous expenses

Finance Cost

Inferast expenses

Sep 20, 2016 Sep 30, 2015
Rupees Rupees
11,358 93,647
25,601 24,932
36,359 148,679
1,529 B56 12,386,687
- 479
9,758,154 12,323,321
148,000 249,328
4,000 15,435
- 871,000
53,236 302,143
- 149,190
12,500 12,500
6,741 43,021
141,255 89,789
11,623,582 26,447,891
5,594,715 3,070,011
5,594,715 3,070,011

Loss pershare

Loss after tax

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
Loss per shars - Basic and Diltted {Rupees}

Nominal value of an equity share (Rupess)

Expenditure in foreign currency

Telecast & uplinking fees

Segment reporting

In accordance with Accounting Standard 17 "Segmeant Reporting” a8 prascibad under Companies {

(17,700,174)
£41,428,540
0.03

10

7 564,194

[31,416,649)
541,428,540
0.05

10

14,797,082

Accounting Standards)

Rulas, 2008, the Company has determined ifs business segment as tzlevision media. Since, there are no other business
sagments in which the Company operaies and ihe content owned by the Comparny is published within India. thers are no
other primary reportzble segments Therefoie the segment revenue, segment rasults, segment assets, segment liabilities,

{otal cost incurred to acquire segment assets, depreciation charge are all as is reflectad inthe finanzial stalements.




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and foc the period ended September 30, 2016

25

i}

Related party disclosures

s per Accounting Standard -18 issued by ihe Institutz of Charered Accauniants of indis, the Company's reélzted parties and tran

Parfie= whers Cantrel exists: Mil

Other related paries with whom lransactons have taken place during ihe yesr

Big Magic Limited
Sinasiar Adverilsing Private Limited

Indiract:
Raliance Srpadoast Network Lirmited
{Hoiding Company of Cinsstar Adveriising Private Limited & Big Magic Uimited)

s over which entities described in (i} above exerciss control: -

Enterorisz

Reliance Talevision Private Linuied

'PLM U{E_anded

Details of yransactions with relsted partes SeptemherSO 2016
Rupees

Cinestar Advertising Private Limited
Issue of aquity sheres {ncluding security premium) 05 548,558
Unsescured |oan taken (nst of repayiment) 10,850,000
Sharz appiicaticn money received 3
interest sxpense 5,594,715
Clesing Balance-interest Accrued 13,781,807
Closing balance - payable 1963 53
Reliance Broadcast Metwork Limited
Expenses Ipcurrad on our hehalf -
BIG Magic Limited
Zaie of assels %
ianagem=ant fees
Expanses incurred on our behali 400
Expenisas incurred on Big Magic behal % z
Reltance Television Private Limited i

Expansas incurred on our behall -
The above disclesurss do not include rsnsactions with public ulility service praviders, viz, eleciricity, telacommunications, in the nommial course of business

Transacticiss wils r2latad parties have bean considerad from the date on which tha refaiionship came into existence,

arg disclosed below

Year ended
March 31, 2016
Rupees




Azalia Broadcast Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as of and for the period ended September 30, 2016

27 The financial statements include numbers for the Six monith period frem 1 Aprit, 2015 to 20 Seplember, 2018
as comparative numbers o the current period numbers as per ihe requirements of AS 25 on Interim
Financial Statements, The numibers for the six month period from 1 April 2015 1o 30 September.2015
have not been subjected to audit / review by the audiiors.

28 Previous year/period figures

Previous year/period figures have been reclassified to conform fo the current period’s ciassification. wherever considered
necessary.

For Shridbar & Associates For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration Number’ 134427TW
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